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While continuing to work to position a strategic steppingstone for the
future, Promise encountered a major challenge in the fiscal year under
review. Nevertheless, the Company intends to further strengthen its earn-
ings base in response to the changes in its business environment, aiming
to maximize corporate value. 

Let me begin by thanking our shareholders for their con-

tinued support and understanding of Promise over the

years. 

While continuing to work to position a strategic step-

pingstone for the future, Promise encountered a major

challenge in the fiscal year under review. The positioning

of a strategic steppingstone refers to the start of our

new joint consumer finance business with Sumitomo

Mitsui Banking Corporation and At-Loan Co., Ltd., which

is an offshoot of our strategic business alliance with

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. The joint business

is based on an epoch-making scheme whereby the three

partners offer consumer loans with different interest rate

bands through the same sales channel. With many cus-

tomers availing themselves of this unique financial serv-

ice already, we are confident in declaring it a success.

The major challenge we faced during the fiscal year

under review, ended March 31, 2006, was the sharp

increase in interest repayment claims made by lawyers

and judicial scriveners on behalf of customers through

legal processes for loan restructuring. These interest

repayment claims result from two laws governing 

interest rates on consumer loans: the Law Concerning

Control on Acceptance of Capital Contributions, Deposits

and Interest (the Capital Subscription Law) and the

Interest Rate Restriction Law. Consumer loans with

interest rates in excess of the ceiling placed on interest

rates under the Interest Rate Restriction Law but within

the allowed range under the Capital Subscription Law

are deemed legal if they meet certain requirements 

stipulated by the Money Lending Business Control and

Regulation Law (the Regulatory Law). Unfortunately, in

the fiscal year under review, there were multiple decisions

by the courts to the effect that these types of interest rate

loans did not meet the requirements of the Regulatory

Law, despite the protests of consumer finance companies. 

In consideration of the significant increase in interest

repayment claims, consumer finance companies decided

to account for the allowance for losses on interest repay-

ments. Under the impact of these greater expenses,

Promise was unable to avoid posting a decline in earn-

ings despite steady revenue growth. Total operating

income rose 3.1% year on year, to ¥381.3 billion, but

net income slumped 44.2%, to ¥42.0 billion. Never-

theless, based on our commitment to stable dividend

payouts, we decided to pay a dividend of ¥105 per share,

the same as in the previous fiscal year. 

The interest rate ceiling under the Capital

Subscription Law is slated to be revised in 2007.

Currently, there is wide-ranging debate at the legal and

administrative levels of the Japanese government, with

the outcome being difficult to anticipate. Promise will

continue, as in the past, to thoroughly comply with ethi-

cal and legal rules and regulations, seeking to increase

the degree of customer satisfaction with its services. In

response to the changes occurring in our business envi-

ronment, we will further strengthen our earnings base,

aiming to maximize corporate value. We believe that

realizing this objective will best serve the interests of our

shareholders. In meeting the challenges of the current

fiscal year, we look forward to the continued support of

our shareholders. 

August 2006

Hiroki Jinnai,
President and Representative Director
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Financial Highlights
Promise Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2006

For the Year:

Total operating income ¥   381,297 ¥   369,860 ¥   390,981 ¥   410,619 ¥   394,495 ¥   359,641 $  3,245,913

Operating profit 67,352 128,301 87,869 106,958 114,518 127,418 573,354

Income before income taxes and 
minority interests 71,332 127,174 79,138 105,806 112,308 107,392 607,232

Net income 42,047 75,379 41,576 60,716 62,941 64,845 357,935

Credit losses including provision 
for uncollectible loans 125,806 97,540 146,413 124,810 96,996 55,990 1,070,964

At Year-end:

Total assets ¥1,760,186 ¥1,785,143 ¥1,718,721 ¥1,855,353 ¥1,833,777 ¥1,679,394 $14,984,132

Consumer loans receivable: Principal 1,580,983 1,599,636 1,529,055 1,614,524 1,543,288 1,418,656 13,458,607

Total shareholders’ equity 776,358 793,987 636,667 618,110 574,866 517,504 6,608,987

Interest-bearing debt 884,783 916,256 1,004,033 1,154,086 1,164,873 1,094,274 7,531,989

Allowance for credit losses 135,674 130,589 133,877 115,398 87,213 61,349 1,154,963

Amount per Share (Yen / U.S. Dollars):

Net income* ¥     321.38 ¥     576.05 ¥     342.19 ¥     483.62 ¥     504.78 ¥     525.02 $           2.74

Cash dividends 105.00 105.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 90.00 0.89

Shareholders’ equity 6,121.14 5,901.62 5,260.21 4,952.12 4,580.66 4,161.18 52.11

* Based on Japanese accounting standards
Note: U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥117.47 to U.S.$1, the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2006.
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What Is Going On in the Consumer
Finance Industry?

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, there was a major change in the
business climate of Japan’s consumer finance industry. The sharp increase in
interest repayment claims through lawyers and judicial scriveners had a substan-
tial impact on the performances of consumer finance companies. The following
is a report on the current status of the consumer finance industry.  

Three Laws Governing 

the Loan Business
Law Concerning Control
on Acceptance of Capital
Contributions, Deposits
and Interest (Capital
Subscription Law)

Interest Rate Restriction Law

Money Lending
Business Control and

Regulation Law
(Regulatory Law)
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Three Laws Governing the Loan
Business

When conducting consumer finance operations, the basic laws reg-
ulating the business are the Regulatory Law and the Capital
Subscription Law. In combination with the Interest Rate Restriction
Law, these are the three laws that govern the loan business.

Article 5, Paragraph 2, of the Capital Subscription Law stipu-
lates that the maximum interest rate that moneylenders can charge
is 29.2% per annum. Businesses in violation of this regulation are
disciplined under the law. Similarly, the Interest Rate Restriction
Law, which was enforced in 1954 with the Capital Subscription
Law, provides that, depending on the amount of principal, the
maximum interest rate shall be between 15% and 20%. At the
same time, however, the law states that if a debtor pays amounts
in excess of the maximum rate voluntarily, repayment cannot be
claimed. 

The following are the main points of the Regulatory Law.
• Loan businesses must register before commencing operations

and periodically renew that registration. 
• As moneylenders, loan businesses must observe strict business

regulations.
• Loan businesses must set up moneylenders associations.
• Authorities have the right to supervise the operations of loan

businesses.
• Interest rates are regulated. 

The Regulatory Law was enacted to eliminate unfair and
inappropriate operators and to ensure that moneylenders carry out
their businesses in accordance with rules stipulated under the law.
In particular, the business regulations that moneylenders must
obey are extremely specific, covering the issuance of contracts and
receipts, the prohibition of excessive loans to individuals, advertis-
ing, debt collection practices, and the signing of loan guarantee
contracts for loans that require guarantors. 

The connection between the Regulatory Law and the Capital
Subscription and Interest Rate Restriction laws regarding interest
rates is an extremely important aspect of this law. Article 43 of the
law sets out the conditions under which a borrower that has paid
interest in excess of the maximum stipulated under the Interest
Rate Restriction Law (15% to 20%) is deemed to have done so
voluntarily and therefore has no recourse to repayment claims. The
two conditions that must be fulfilled are (1) the details of the con-
tract, such as interest rate, and the debt incurred must be submit-
ted to the borrower clearly in writing and (2) whenever a repay-
ment is received from the borrower, a receipt must be issued to the
borrower clearly indicating the received amount and its application
to principal and interest owed.

Consumer Finance Business Flow

The business flow of Promise and other consumer finance compa-
nies that comply with laws and regulations depends on the regula-
tions of the Regulatory Law. When consumer finance companies
receive a loan application, they must carefully make a credit
assessment to ensure that the loan will not be excessive (Article
13). The details of the loan contract must be submitted to the cus-
tomer in writing (Article 17). When the customer makes a repay-
ment based on the contract, a receipt must be issued (Article 18).
Also, the loan business must follow regulations for loan collection
practices, such as the private life of the customer or proper busi-
ness conduct must not be disrupted even when collecting loans in
arrears (Article 21). 

Changes in the Interpretation 
of the Law and Increased Interest
Repayment Claims

Bankruptcy applications reached a peak in 2003 and have steadily
declined since then. In their place, however, legal debt restructuring

What Is Going On in the Consumer Finance Industry?

* With revolving contracts, consumer finance companies are required to submit the above written documentation and issue a receipt to 
customers for each loan and repayment.
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by lawyers and judicial scriveners has been on the rise. Taking
Promise as an example, a breakdown of loan losses by cause
shows that in the fiscal year ended March 2002, legal proceedings
by lawyers or courts accounted for only 22.4% of loan losses. By
the fiscal year ended March 2006, this proportion had jumped to
45.7%. Over the same period, the proportion of loan losses caused
by personal bankruptcy had fallen from 40.1% to 19.1%. 

As a backdrop to the increase in legal debt restructuring, the
lifting of the prohibition on advertising by lawyers in October 2000
and subsequent start of legal advertising resulted in a heightened
awareness among the public of legal debt restructuring methods.
In addition, the rise in individual legal suits regarding debt restruc-
turing is thought to have contributed to the decision by the courts
that consumer finance companies were not meeting the previously
mentioned conditions required by Article 43 of the Regulatory Law.
For example, because of the special flexible nature of the revolving
contracts offered by many consumer finance companies, the repay-
ment period, the number of payments, and the repayment amount
were omitted from contracts. However, in December 2005, a deci-
sion by the Supreme Court of Japan stated that if these items are
not included in written contracts, the requirement of submitting
the contract in writing to the customer stipulated in Article 17 of
the Regulatory Law has not been met. Previous to that legal deci-
sion, in February 2004, the courts had handed down a strict inter-
pretation of the items to be included in the receipt as required by
Article 18 of the same law. And in July 2005, the Supreme Court
decided that a consumer finance company must disclose its full
record of transactions with a customer based on its actual ledgers.
All of these court decisions have had a significant impact on the
consumer finance business. The latter decision in particular has led
to a ballooning of interest repayment claim amounts per debt
restructuring made possible by the consumer finance company
being obliged in practical terms to disclose all prior transaction

records. It has also prompted heightened intervention activities by
lawyers and judicial scriveners due to easy access to records. 

The Controversy over Lowering 
the Interest Rate Ceiling

In June 2000, the maximum interest rate allowed under the Capital
Subscription Law was lowered from 40.004% to 29.2%. This inter-
est rate was reaffirmed in the 2003 revision of the law and stands
to this day. At the time of the 2003 revision, however, a supple-
mentary provision was added to the law to the effect that a revi-
sion of regulated interest rates would be made in about three
years. In line with that provision, the legal and administrative lev-
els of the Japanese government are now preparing to revise relat-
ed laws and regulations. Within that movement, controversy is
arising over how to handle the situation of interest rates being
governed by two different laws, the Capital Subscription Law and
Interest Rate Restriction Law. 

Matters other than the maximum interest rate are also caus-
ing controversy. To make the business entrance regulations more
appropriate, the regulatory authorities are moving in the direction
of raising the net asset requirement for registering as a money
lending business, requiring that a person is certified in charge of
the lending business, and implementing other measures to prevent
inappropriate companies from entering the business. For reinforc-
ing regulations for advertising and sales practices, the debate is
covering such issues as requiring more appropriate content for
advertising, improving the process of explanation to the customer
when signing the contract, and prohibiting inappropriate debt col-
lection practices. Among measures for preventing excessive multi-
ple indebtedness, expanding and upgrading credit information
institutions and expanding and improving counseling structures are
being suggested as possible solutions.

What Is Going On in the Consumer Finance Industry?
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The Promise Group’s Course of Action 

The changes in the business environment of the consumer finance industry have
had a large impact on Promise. We have no way of telling how the industry-
related laws will be revised, but they could have a significant impact on our
future performance. In response to these circumstances, the Promise Group
intends to continue its collaboration with Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group
(SMFG) and pursue business development. 

Changes in 

Maximum Interest Rate
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Large Decline in Profits in Fiscal Year
Ended March 2006

In the fiscal year under review, total operating income increased
3.1%, to ¥381.3 billion. Operating profit decreased 47.5%, to
¥67.4 billion, and net income was down 44.2%, to ¥42.0 billion.
The primary cause of this rise in operating income but decline in
earnings was the sharp increase in interest repayment expenses. 

In lawsuits for debt restructuring, when the court decides
that the consumer finance company has not met the conditions 
set out in Article 43 of the Regulatory Law, the customer’s prior 

Simulation of Interest Repayment Claim The graph shown on the left depicts the decline in the
balance of a ¥500,000 consumer loan with fixed
monthly payments. The black line indicates the declin-
ing loan balance at an interest rate of 25.55%
(Promise’s maximum interest rate), while the white line
shows the declining loan balance at an interest rate of
18% (maximum rate under the Interest Rate Restriction
Law). In the event that a claim for interest repayment
arises, the amount paid in interest monthly in excess of
the amount allowable under the Interest Rate
Restriction Law becomes a repayment of principal. The
white line, therefore, shows the new balance remaining
after each payment. In terms of accounting treatment,
if an interest repayment claim arises at point (1), a
write-off and interest repayment occur since the loan
still remains on the books. If the claim emerges at point
(2), no loan remains on the books, therefore only an
interest repayment occurs. If the claim is made at point
(3), the difference between the black and white lines
results in a write-off, but the white line loan balance
remains on the books. 

transactions with the consumer finance company are recalculated
using the maximum interest rate allowed under the Interest Rate
Restriction Law. The consumer finance company is obliged to repay
all payments made by the customer in excess of full repayment of
loan principal under the new calculation system. Based on this
legal precedent, there was a great increase in the number of inter-
est repayment claims made through lawyers and judicial scriveners,
resulting in growth in interest repayment expenses. Such condi-
tions prevailed throughout the consumer finance industry and were
reflected in a marked rise in the number of interest repayment
cases and in Promise’s accounts from about October 2005. 
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Establishment of an Allowance for
Losses on Interest Repayments

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, total interest repayments
amounted to ¥6.0 billion. This amount jumped to ¥14.4 billion in
the fiscal year under review. Furthermore, the Company set up an
allowance for losses on interest repayments in the fiscal year.
Combining the ¥24.0 billion provision for this reserve with interest
repayments, total interest repayment expenses amounted to ¥38.4
billion, compared with ¥6.0 billion in the previous fiscal year. This
increase of ¥32.4 billion accounted for about 53% of the ¥61.0
billion decline in operating profit. In view of the decisions handed
down by the Supreme Court of Japan, consumer finance compa-
nies have set up similar reserves. 

The increase in legal processes for debt restructuring has
also led to greater loan losses. Because the Company uses a con-
servative reserve standard of the loan loss ratio for the previous
year to determine the level of the allowance for credit losses, credit
losses totaled ¥125.8 billion in the fiscal year, rising ¥28.3 billion
year on year. These expenses accounted for about 46% of the
¥61.0 billion decline in operating profit. Therefore, the fall in oper-
ating profit in the fiscal year under review can be explained by the
increase in interest repayment expenses and higher credit losses
due to the change in the business environment. 

Impact of the Revision of the Legal
Interest Rate Ceiling

As mentioned, full-scale debate is under way on the revision of the
three laws governing the loan business. One of the focuses of this
debate is what level of legal interest rates will best serve the sound

development of the money lending industry. If the current maxi-
mum interest rate of the Interest Rate Restriction Law was used to
unify legal interest rate structures, the decision would have a major
impact not only on the consumer finance industry but also on the
credit card and sales finance industries. 

Since 1995, Promise has been using a maximum interest
rate of 25.55%, the lowest in the industry. From early on, we have
also endeavored to further reduce our actual interest rates by offer-
ing our customers preferential rates depending on their transac-
tions and relationship with us. 

On an industry basis, we participate in measures to protect
against excessive multiple indebtedness, another area of contro-
versy. Commencing in June 2006, seven major consumer finance
companies began the Excessive Loan Prevention Campaign.
Specifically, in the five regions of Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya, Fukuoka,
and Hokkaido, the group of seven companies began a joint educa-
tional TV commercial campaign linked to similar advertising in
newspapers and magazines and with major public transportation
companies. Among other voluntary actions the industry is taking to
prevent excessive multiple indebtedness are the production and
distribution of flyers and the development and introduction of
household management diagnostic services. The industry as a
whole is committed to promoting a sounder consumer finance
market. 

If the revision of the legal interest rate ceiling results in a
significant drop in maximum interest rates, it will have a tremen-
dous impact on the industry. However, it can also be seen as a
potential turning point in the fortunes of companies willing to
revise their strategies to target new growth based on the anticipat-
ed reorganization of the industry. 

The Promise Group’s Course of Action 



• 12

Outline of Promise’s Growth Strategies

Since its founding, the Promise Group has pursued growth as a
specialist in consumer finance services. In terms of meeting the
cash needs of consumers, the growth strategies the Group adopted
then are no different to those it implements now. However, the
vehicle that enables the Group to respond to the diversifying needs
of today’s consumers is its full-line interest rate strategy. 

Even before the alliance with SMFG, the Promise Group had
assembled a product lineup that encompassed its full-line interest
rate strategy within its scope as a non-bank company. The alliance
with SMFG is an extension of that initiative with the goal of com-
pleting the strategy. The joint consumer finance business combin-
ing the product lineups of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
(SMBC), At-Loan Co., Ltd., and Promise allows the Promise Group
to realize a full lineup of interest rates and is expected to be a
future driver of growth. 
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The Promise Group’s Course of Action 
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Progress Report on the Full-Line
Interest Rate Strategy

The one constant strategy that the Promise Group has pursued
over the years has been the full-line interest rate strategy. The goal
of this strategy is to enable the Promise Group to build a broader
customer base by offering loan products with different interest
rates that match the credit risk of different categories of customers.
The central role in the strategy is taken by Promise itself, which
offers loan products with interest rates ranging from 17.8% to
25.55% and has a total of 2.31 million customers and consumer
loans outstanding of ¥1,295.3 billion. (These figures and those
hereinafter are for the fiscal year ended March 2006.) Moreover,
Promise boasts an impressive sales network that enables cus-
tomers to make and repay loans anytime, anywhere. The Company
has a nationwide network of 1,474 branches, of which 415
branches are staffed and 1,059 branches are unstaffed. In addi-
tion, there are tie-up channels a total of 108,762 cash dispensers
(CDs) and automated teller machines (ATMs) from which 

customers can access their loans and a total of 75,153 channels
for making payments on loans, including 59,492 ATMs and 15,661
convenience store outlets. 

The Promise Group began implementing its full-line interest
rate strategy in earnest in April 2000 with the acquisition of four
medium-sized consumer finance companies, Shinkou Co., Ltd.,
Rich Co., Ltd., TOWA Co., Ltd., and Sun Life Co., Ltd. Of these
companies, Shinkou, Rich, and TOWA were later merged into Plat
Corporation, currently QUOQLOAN INC. Together QUOQLOAN and
Sun Life offer loans with interest rates of 29.2% to customers with
credit risk levels that cannot be serviced by Promise. The combined
consumer loans outstanding of these two companies total about
¥145.0 billion. The operations of the two subsidiaries differ in that
QUOQLOAN is pursuing a nationwide network development strate-
gy while Sun Life is employing an area dominance strategy. 

In 2000, Promise formed the consumer finance joint venture
MOBIT CO., LTD., with The Sanwa Bank, Ltd., currently The Bank
of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. MOBIT, of which Promise holds 50%
of voting rights, began operations in September 2000, offering
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consumer finance loans in the 15% to 18% range, which was an
under-serviced market at the time. Utilizing the brand name power
of the underlying bank and the consumer finance know-how of
Promise, MOBIT sought to develop a new market. MOBIT’s con-
sumer loans outstanding stand at ¥224.5 billion, and efforts to
create a new market have been a success. While Promise depends
on sales channels for its sales base, MOBIT uses the Internet, call
centers, and the postal service to receive loan applications and
takes advantage of a tie-up network of ATMs to provide withdraw-
al and payment services while minimizing network costs. Also, by
installing its loan processing machine “SUGUMOBI” in the branch-
es of the former UFJ Bank, Ltd., MOBIT achieves cost savings while
improving customer convenience. 

Alliance Business with SMFG

Promise entered into a strategic business alliance with SMFG with
an eye to completing the full-line interest rate strategy that it had
been pursuing since 2000. As a result of the alliance, Promise and
SMFG launched a joint consumer finance business in April 2005. 
Through automatic contract machines (ACMs) installed in SMBC’s
branches, SMBC offers consumer loans at 8% to 12%, while At-
Loan, which became a subsidiary of Promise in January 2005, pro-
vides consumer loans at 15% to 18%. Promise supplies consumer
loans at 18% to 25.55%. Applications for all consumer loans are

collected at the Shiodome call center in Tokyo, while each partner
carries out its own credit evaluations at the SMBC Loan Plaza, the
At-Loan Center, and the Promise Loan Center. In addition, Promise
does necessary credit assessments of SMBC and At-Loan loans for
which it provides loan guarantee services. With the addition of 8%
to 12% loans made possible by SMBC, the Promise Group has
finally realized a full lineup of interest rates.

The consumer loans outstanding of the joint consumer
finance business have risen sharply, from ¥43.0 billion at the end
of September 2005 to ¥106.4 billion at the end of March 2006. Of
that amount, SMBC accounted for ¥64.0 billion; At-Loan, ¥36.9
billion; and Promise, ¥5.5 billion. The ballooning of the consumer
loans outstanding of SMBC has also pushed up the guaranteed
loans outstanding of Promise. At March 31, 2006, excluding the
guaranteed loans of At-Loan, Promise’s guaranteed loans out-
standing hit ¥77.5 billion, soaring 16 times from the previous fiscal
year-end. Even excluding the loan guarantees of SMBC, the busi-
ness expanded due to business tie-ups with other banks providing
a new source of earnings for the Promise Group. Among other new
businesses, SMFG’s subsidiary QUOQ Inc. and Promise’s subsidiary
QUOQLOAN have begun a joint loan business and Promise is pro-
viding loan guarantee services to The Japan Net Bank, Limited. The
Promise Group intends to continue to strengthen its cooperative
ties with SMFG to achieve further business expansion. 

The Promise Group’s Course of Action 

Promise Loan Center
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Strengthening International 
and Internet-Related Businesses

The Promise Group is conducting consumer finance and loan guar-
antee businesses in Hong Kong and Taiwan. Established in 1992,
PROMISE (HONG KONG) CO., LTD., operates a consumer finance
business similar to operations in Japan. At December 31, 2005, the
subsidiary’s consumer loans outstanding totaled ¥22.2 billion. In
Taiwan, where only banks are permitted to provide consumer
finance, Promise established PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD., with
an eye to possible deregulation of the consumer finance market in
the future. The subsidiary currently provides loan guarantee servic-
es, which it began in December 2002 through a joint venture with
Ta Chong Bank, a medium-sized local bank. At December 31,
2005, PROMISE TAIWAN’s guaranteed loans outstanding amount-
ed to ¥44.1 billion. In October 2005, Promise established
PROMISE (THAILAND) CO., LTD., in Bangkok to enter Thailand’s
consumer finance market.

In addition to the previously mentioned business alliance
with The Japan Net Bank, Promise has taken steps to further
strengthen its Internet-related business, concluding a capital and
business alliance with Index Corporation, which provides content
and business solution services, principally for mobile phone sys-
tems. Mobile phones are playing an increasingly important role as
a sales channel in the consumer finance business. By collaborating
with Index, Promise plans to stay ahead of competitors by
strengthening its mobile services, which should lead to greater
competitiveness in the medium-to-long term.

The Promise Group’s Course of Action 

Loan application is available also from
the Internet

Loan application page on the Internet

PROMISE (HONG KONG) CO., LTD.

PROMISE (THAILAND) CO., LTD.

PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.
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Corporate Governance and Compliance 

Promise 

Code of Ethics Guidebook
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Corporate Governance

The Promise Group believes that the establishment of effective cor-
porate governance is an integral element in prosperous coexistence
with society as a trusted corporate citizen. For that purpose, the
Group constantly strives to further improve management efficiency,
soundness, and transparency.

Consumer finance is our core business; therefore, we aim 
to have a corporate governance system that enables the entire
Promise Group to provide quality consumer finance services. In
that sense, we believe that to ensure appropriate execution of
Group business strategies, important business decisions regarding
business operations should be decided based on thorough discus-
sion by the Board of Directors. Half of our directors have had busi-
ness experience in other fields, which is reflected in our manage-
ment through the diverse viewpoints that are considered in the
decision-making process. In addition, we have chosen to use a cor-
porate auditor system, having determined that the utilization of a
corporate auditor system incorporating outside corporate auditors
would best facilitate the proper operation of the management per-
formance oversight function. 

Items regarding business decisions and execution and audit-
ing and management oversight are discussed below. 

Corporate Governance Organization
for Business Decisions and Execution

Promise has adopted an executive officer system to separate the
functions of business decisions and execution. 

The Promise Board of Directors consists of eight members
and holds two regular meetings a month, meeting otherwise as
necessary. The Board of Directors makes decisions on matters
required by law, discusses and decides on important matters
regarding business management, and provides oversight of busi-
ness operations. 

The Business Strategy Meeting acts as an advisory arm to
the president of the Company. Convened, in principle, twice a
month, the meeting is attended by directors and executive officers
in charge of business divisions. In addition to screening proposals
to be presented to the Board of Directors, they discuss major
strategic business proposals and business actions. In addition, the
Executive Officers Meeting, comprising all executive officers, con-
venes once every business quarter to hear reports on business
operations or to deal with outstanding cross-departmental issues.
The executive officers also use these occasions to share informa-
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tion and opinions on management issues. Including directors who
also serve as executive officers, Promise has appointed 19 execu-
tive officers. 

Corporate Governance Organization
for Auditing and Management
Oversight

Promise has adopted a corporate auditor system. Five corporate
auditors, including three outside corporate auditors, conduct audits
of the Company’s businesses. The corporate auditors fulfill their
role of providing oversight of the Company’s management per-

formance and business execution by participating in important
meetings, holding information hearings with the directors on vari-
ous topics, inspecting documentation related to important business
decisions, and surveying Group companies. In October 2005, the
Company established the Auditors Department, which has three
dedicated staff members to assist the corporate auditors with their
audits. Furthermore, the 47-member Inspection Department, which
acts as the internal audit department, conducts systematic audits
of all business units from the perspective of internal control, com-
pliance, and risk management. The corporate auditors and the
Inspection Department have regular meetings every business quar-
ter to discuss and share information. 

Directors
Chairman Masaaki Uchino

President Hiroki Jinnai — Chief Executive Officer

Directors Shunji Kosugi — Senior Managing Executive Officer
Teruaki Watanabe — Senior Managing Executive Officer
Isao Takeuchi — Managing Executive Officer
Yasuhisa Ichikawa — Managing Executive Officer
Tsutomu Kasori — Managing Executive Officer
Toshihiro Kubode — Managing Executive Officer

Corporate Auditors
Full-Time Corporate Auditors Kazuya Koshita

Yukio Yoshida
Hiroaki Mori*
Morio Kansaku*

Part-Time Corporate Auditor Kazuo Nagasawa* *Outside Auditor

Executive Officers
Chief Executive Officer Hiroki Jinnai

Senior Managing Executive Officers Shunji Kosugi — Liaison Officer
Teruaki Watanabe — In Charge of Marketing Depts., Navigation Planning Dept., Marketing & Planning Dept.,

e-Communication Promotion Dept., Advertising Dept., Channel Development Dept.

Managing Executive Officers Isao Takeuchi — In Charge of Business Administration Depts.
Yasuhisa Ichikawa — Marketing Administration Dept., Blocks Administration, Alliance Promotion Dept.,

Marketing Operation Dept.
Tsutomu Kasori — In Charge of Corporate Planning Depts., Corporate Communications Dept.
Toshihiro Kubode — Corporate Planning Dept., Affiliated Business Dept.
Masayuki Fujiwara — General Affairs Dept., Accounting Dept.
Yukihiro Suzuki — Alliance Promotion Dept., Marketing Operation Dept.

Executive Officers Takeshi Hirai — Eastern Area Collection & Research Dept., Western Area Collection & Research Dept.
Naohisa Tonami — General Affairs Dept.
Tetsu Suzuki — Treasury Dept., Inspection Dept.
Yoshiyuki Tateishi — IT Planning Dept., IT Development Dept., IT Operation Dept.
Toshio Shinohara — Special Assignment from the President
Hiromichi Ezawa — Risk Management Dept., Customer Relationship Dept.
Masaru Kasori — IT Planning Dept.
Masahiro Kudo — Personnel Dept., Staff Training Dept.
Shoichi Azuma — Corporate Planning Dept.
Hirokazu Mitsui — Block Administration, Marketing Administration Dept.

Management 
(As of June 20, 2006)
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Reinforcing the Compliance Organization

Promise views thorough compliance as a high-priority issue and
recognizes compliance to be the base for all its corporate activities.
The Company works to ensure ethical and legal compliance
Groupwide and has set up a compliance organization and ongoing
programs to raise awareness of compliance among employees. 

On April 1, 2005, Promise re-formed the Compliance
Department into the Risk Management Department for the pur-
pose of establishing a compliance management function and
strengthening risk management. In addition to adding a risk man-
agement function for business operations, the Company merged
the legal response function that had previously been the responsi-
bility of the Legal Department into the Risk Management
Department in April 2006. Through this action, Promise aims to
create a stronger management organization by incorporating com-
pliance activities into its risk management and legal affairs opera-
tions to complement its previous activities based on its compliance
promotion strategies and internal communications system.

Specifically, Promise has established an organization to
ensure thorough compliance on a daily basis. The Company
appoints compliance and risk management managers and adminis-
trators for all business sections and requires employees to adopt a
code of ethics, create compliance implementation proposals, and
inspect compliance status on a regular basis. Promise is also taking
steps to obtain a better grasp of and improve compliance and risk
management throughout the Group. To establish a fair and healthy
working environment and achieve early discovery of risk issues,
Promise has set up the Advisory Section inside and outside the
Company. Moreover, since 2003, Promise has been encouraging
its employees to take the Compliance Officer Certification
Examination (Consumer Finance Course) offered by the Kinzai
Institute for Financial Affairs. The Company has ongoing training or
internal communications programs aimed at achieving heightened
awareness of compliance among employees. 
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Establishing an Internal Control System

Promise recognizes that the establishment and proper functioning of an internal control system is an important management issue and is work-
ing toward those goals by preparing related Company rules and building an internal organization. On May 12, 2006, in a meeting held by the
Board of Directors, the Company decided on the basic policies for the establishment of an internal control system in accordance with the
Corporation Law and its enforcement regulations. 

Organization Chart
of Promise Co., Ltd.
(As of April 1, 2006) 
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Industry Data

New Consumer Credit, by Type of Lender
(¥100 million / %)

2000/12 YOY 2001/12 YOY 2002/12 YOY 2003/12 YOY 2004/12 YOY

Consumer credit 735,868 0.6 740,963 0.7 728,225 –1.7 730,147 0.3 741,417 1.5
Sales on credit 346,490 4.2 355,015 2.5 363,459 2.4 379,301 4.4 401,945 6.0
Consumer finance 389,378 –2.3 385,948 –0.9 364,766 –5.5 350,846 –3.8 339,472 –3.2

Of which, consumer loans 236,050 3.2 246,716 4.5 244,656 –0.8 238,164 –2.7 237,650 –0.2
Commercial finance institutions 41,126 3.4 39,858 –3.1 40,448 1.5 39,461 –2.4 33,005 –16.4
Consumer finance companies (including Promise) 99,811 5.1 106,327 6.5 101,917 –4.1 97,507 –4.3 102,845 5.5
Sales finance (Shinpan) companies 39,768 2.7 42,444 6.7 43,353 2.1 43,437 0.2 43,209 –0.5
Bank-affiliated credit card companies 31,526 –0.3 32,456 2.9 32,087 –1.1 30,330 –5.5 30,022 –1.0
Distributor-affiliated credit card companies 13,823 1.6 15,820 14.4 17,025 7.6 17,737 4.2 19,231 8.4
Others 9,996 0.4 9,811 –1.9 9,826 0.2 9,692 –1.4 9,338 –3.7

Note: “YOY” stands for year-on-year percentage increase or decrease.
Source: Japan Credit Industry Association, Japan Credit Industry Statistics 2006

Consumer Credit Outstanding, by Type of Lender
(¥100 million / %)

2000/12 YOY 2001/12 YOY 2002/12 YOY 2003/12 YOY 2004/12 YOY

Consumer credit 652,247 –2.4 635,927 –2.5 607,750 –4.4 595,118 –2.1 582,415 –2.1
Sales on credit 159,639 –2.4 153,683 –3.7 148,353 –3.5 148,316 0.0 147,711 –0.4
Consumer finance 492,608 –2.4 482,244 –2.1 459,397 –4.7 446,802 –2.7 434,704 –2.7

Of which, consumer loans 356,620 1.5 358,517 0.5 352,849 –1.6 346,492 –1.8 344,999 –0.4
Commercial finance institutions 210,091 –3.6 199,793 –4.9 185,566 –7.1 178,987 –3.5 176,795 –1.2
Consumer finance companies (including Promise) 88,489 12.6 96,918 9.5 102,357 5.6 101,755 –0.6 101,571 –0.2
Sales finance (Shinpan) companies 36,317 6.8 38,350 5.6 40,140 4.7 40,291 0.4 39,696 –1.5
Bank-affiliated credit card companies 8,730 4.7 9,103 4.3 9,434 3.6 9,531 1.0 9,964 4.5
Distributor-affiliated credit card companies 8,342 12.2 9,199 10.3 9,860 7.2 10,174 3.2 11,283 10.9
Others 4,651 –5.2 5,154 10.8 5,492 6.6 5,754 4.8 5,690 –1.1

Note: “YOY” stands for year-on-year percentage increase or decrease.
Source: Japan Credit Industry Association, Japan Credit Industry Statistics 2006
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Number of Salary Earners, by Annual Income
(Thousands / %)

2000/12 % 2001/12 % 2002/12 % 2003/12 % 2004/12 %

¥2 million or less 8,247 18.4 8,615 19.1 8,530 19.1 9,021 20.2 9,632 21.6
More than ¥2 million to ¥3 million 6,821 15.2 6,878 15.3 7,063 15.8 7,047 15.8 7,031 15.8
More than ¥3 million to ¥4 million 7,817 17.4 7,875 17.5 7,996 17.9 7,830 17.5 7,569 17.0
More than ¥4 million to ¥5 million 6,640 14.8 6,600 14.6 6,495 14.5 6,470 14.5 6,418 14.4
More than ¥5 million to ¥6 million 4,787 10.7 4,830 10.7 4,724 10.6 4,591 10.3 4,479 10.1
More than ¥6 million to ¥7 million 3,225 7.2 3,153 7.0 3,090 6.9 2,963 6.6 2,863 6.4
More than ¥7 million 7,403 16.5 7,144 15.8 6,828 15.3 6,741 15.1 6,539 14.7
Total 44,939 100.0 45,097 100.0 44,724 100.0 44,661 100.0 44,530 100.0
Note: “%” figures refer to percentage distribution.
Source: National Tax Agency

Consumer Loans Outstanding of Five Leading 
Consumer Finance Companies

Consumer Finance Industry Oligopoly 
(As of March 2005)
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Source: Federation of Moneylenders Association of Japan

Notes: 1. Consumer loans outstanding (for loan business) at year-end.
2. Joint ventures are MOBIT, At-Loan, and DC Cash One.

Source: Companies’ financial results
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Applications for Personal Bankruptcy (Nationwide)
(%)

2002/3 YOY 2003/3 YOY 2004/3 YOY 2005/3 YOY 2006/3 YOY

April 12,362 11.2 17,899 44.8 22,126 23.6 19,723 –10.9 16,522 –16.2
May 12,707 15.9 17,739 39.6 21,310 20.1 15,800 –25.9 14,126 –10.6
June 13,779 11.2 17,274 25.4 21,789 26.1 18,675 –14.3 17,193 –7.9
July 13,727 24.0 20,472 49.1 22,991 12.3 17,840 –22.4 15,614 –12.5
August 13,528 17.0 16,902 24.9 18,162 7.5 16,206 –10.8 15,523 –4.2
September 13,376 18.3 17,586 31.5 19,589 11.4 16,517 –15.7 15,250 –7.7
October 16,095 32.7 20,597 28.0 20,851 1.2 16,555 –20.6 15,141 –8.5
November 15,917 30.0 19,445 22.2 17,207 –11.5 16,522 –4.0 15,291 –7.5
December 17,319 12.3 21,900 26.5 21,682 –1.0 19,820 –8.6 16,361 –17.5
January 11,983 60.9 15,296 27.6 14,000 –8.5 10,856 –22.5 10,479 –3.5
February 15,524 40.0 19,511 25.7 17,926 –8.1 14,415 –19.6 14,359 –0.4
March 17,313 32.1 21,863 26.3 21,818 –0.2 18,002 –17.5 16,001 –11.1
Total 173,630 24.1 226,484 30.4 239,451 5.7 200,931 –16.1 181,860 –9.5
Note: “YOY” stands for year-on-year percentage increase or decrease.
Source: The Supreme Court

Applications by Individuals for Civil Rehabilitation (Nationwide)
(%)

2002/3 YOY 2003/3 YOY 2004/3 YOY 2005/3 YOY 2006/3 YOY

April 336 — 1,059 215.2 1,912 80.5 2,363 23.6 2,235 –5.4
May 465 — 1,035 122.6 1,952 88.6 1,932 –1.0 1,959 1.4
June 631 — 1,034 63.9 2,132 106.2 2,453 15.1 2,375 –3.2
July 683 — 1,190 74.2 2,258 89.7 2,299 1.8 2,240 –2.6
August 663 — 1,091 64.6 1,927 76.6 2,093 8.6 2,183 4.3
September 668 — 1,198 79.3 2,072 73.0 2,081 0.4 2,111 1.4
October 854 — 1,432 67.7 2,343 63.6 2,154 –8.1 2,160 0.3
November 902 — 1,472 63.2 2,021 37.3 2,252 11.4 2,180 –3.2
December 1,008 — 1,649 63.6 2,568 55.7 2,589 0.8 2,533 –2.2
January 570 — 1,192 109.1 1,583 32.8 1,524 –3.7 1,503 –1.4
February 762 — 1,460 91.6 2,099 43.8 2,066 –1.6 2,095 1.4
March 915 — 1,774 93.9 2,449 38.0 2,482 1.3 2,372 –4.4
Total 8,457 — 15,586 84.3 25,316 62.4 26,288 3.8 25,946 –1.3
Note: “YOY” stands for year-on-year percentage increase or decrease.
Source: The Supreme Court

Monthly Trends of Personal Bankruptcy (April 2002–March 2006)
(%)
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Number of Individuals Registered at Zenjoren
(Millions)
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Source: Zenjoren (Federation of Credit Bureaus of Japan)

Overview of the Four Personal Credit Information Bureaus

Consumer finance sector Sales finance sector Bank sector Independent sector

Zenjoren CIC Zenginkyo (KSC) CCB
Federation of Credit Personal Credit Information  
Bureaus of Japan Center of Japanese Bankers 

Association
Date of establishment September 1976 September 1984 October 1988 August 1979
System Membership system Membership system Membership system Membership system
Registered members 3,406 companies (as of March 2006) 744 companies (as of May 2006) 1,479 companies (as of May 2006) 529 companies (as of May 2006)

7,326 offices (as of March 2006) 36,140 offices (as of September 2005)
Amount of 22.24 million people  445,200,859 transactions (total) 79,795,000 transactions (total) 251.19 million transactions (total)
data recorded (after entry in database) (as of May 2006) (as of May 2006) (as of May 2006)

(as of March 2006)
Scope of data recorded All transactions must be recorded All transactions must be recorded All transactions must be recorded All transactions must be recorded
Frequency of At the time of transaction Recorded on each member At the time of transaction Recorded on each member 
data recording company’s month-end company’s month-end 

closing date closing date
(minimum of once per month) (minimum of once per month)

Hours of credit inquries 9:00–21:00 8:00–22:00 Weekdays: 9:00–21:00 8:00–26:00
Week-ends and holidays: Wed., Sun., End of month: 

9:00–16:00    8:00–21.00
Sources: Consumer Credit Monthly (September 2005 and July 2006 editions); Web sites of each bureau; and discussion with credit information organizations.

Conceptual Diagram of Information Bureaus

Zenginkyo
Personal Credit Information
Center of Japanese Bankers

Association

CIC

JIC
Japan Information

Center
Tera Net

Zenjoren
Star Net System

(STARS)

Information regarding
number of loans

Loan balances not disclosed

Sales finance companies, 
credit card companies, etc.

Banks, Credit Unions, etc.

Consumer finance
companies, etc.

Non-bank member
companies

CRIN
Credit Information Network

Mutual exchange of 
arrears information

TERA
Exchange System

Mutual exchange of 
information regarding the number 

of loans with outstanding
balances
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Consolidated Basis

Promise Group’s Business Indicators

Consumer Loans Outstanding

Secured loans
Unsecured loans
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(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Consumer loans outstanding 1,543,288 1,614,524 1,529,055 1,599,636 1,580,983
Year-on-year growth (%) 8.8 4.6 –5.3 4.6 –1.2

Individual customers 1,540,288 1,613,500 1,529,055 1,599,636 1,580,983
Unsecured loans 1,532,578 1,607,121 1,523,667 1,595,397 1,577,494
Secured loans 7,710 6,378 5,387 4,238 3,488

Corporate customers 3,000 1,023 — — —
Unsecured loans — 1,023 — — —
Secured loans 3,000 — — — —

Unsecured Loans Outstanding, by Area 
(As of March 31, 2006)

1.4%

8.6%

41.2%

12.2%

15.9%

7.7%

8.9%

4.1%

Hokkaido
Tohoku
Kanto
Chubu

Kinki
Chugoku, Shikoku
Kyushu
Overseas

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Unsecured loans outstanding 1,532,578 1,608,145 1,523,667 1,595,397 1,577,494
Domestic 1,514,506 1,592,396 1,507,734 1,577,519 1,555,266

Hokkaido 73,831 75,114 68,663 66,969 64,002
Tohoku 152,743 160,028 153,446 149,580 136,017
Kanto 526,717 565,624 528,783 626,810 650,171
Chubu 198,731 212,390 210,530 206,592 192,107
Kinki 267,302 273,141 252,723 243,113 251,137
Chugoku, Shikoku 132,012 136,285 132,112 128,780 120,676
Kyushu 163,167 169,812 161,474 155,671 141,153

Overseas 18,071 15,748 15,932 17,878 22,227
Hong Kong 18,071 15,748 15,932 17,878 22,227

Secured Loans Outstanding, by Area 
(As of March 31, 2006)

6.1%

6.9%

17.8%

6.7%
48.0%

11.7%

2.8%

Hokkaido
Tohoku
Kanto
Chubu

Kinki
Chugoku, Shikoku
Kyushu

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Secured loans outstanding 10,710 6,378 5,387 4,238 3,488
Hokkaido 254 232 167 124 96
Tohoku 793 648 572 448 240
Kanto 3,980 784 768 623 621
Chubu 617 542 423 335 232
Kinki 3,469 2,810 2,270 1,796 1,674
Chugoku, Shikoku 1,093 910 783 623 409
Kyushu 501 450 402 285 213
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Number of Accounts

Secured loans
Unsecured loans

4,000

3,000
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1,000

0

(Thousands)

02 03 04 05 06

(Thousands)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of accounts 3,233 3,227 2,941 3,024 2,950
Year-on-year growth (%) 3.3 –0.2 –8.9 2.8 –2.4

Individual customers 3,233 3,227 2,941 3,024 2,950
Unsecured loans 3,230 3,225 2,939 3,022 2,948
Secured loans 2 2 2 1 1

Corporate customers 0 0 — — —
Unsecured loans — 0 — — —
Secured loans 0 — — — —

Unsecured Loans Outstanding per Account
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2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Unsecured loans outstanding per account 474 498 518 527 534
Note: Unsecured loans outstanding per account = unsecured loans outstanding (year-end) � number of 

unsecured loans accounts (year-end) 

Number of Unsecured Loan Branches
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Unstaffed branches
Staffed branches

( )

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of unsecured loan branches 1,785 1,711 1,644 1,628 1,586
Staffed branches 630 570 544 530 472
Unstaffed branches 1,155 1,141 1,100 1,098 1,114

Number of ATMs and CDs 2,208 2,105 1,782 1,769 1,694
Number of automated contract machines 1,651 1,556 1,503 1,880 1,529
Number of loan processing machines — — 123 452 1,013
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Number of Employees
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2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of employees 5,723 5,773 4,599 4,967 4,985

Loan Losses
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Loan losses
Loan loss ratio (%)

02 03 04 05 06

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Consumer loans outstanding 1,543,288 1,614,524 1,529,055 1,599,636 1,580,983
Loan losses 72,324 96,608 119,571 109,260 115,389
Loan loss ratio (%) 4.69 5.98 7.82 6.83 7.30
Credit losses 96,996 124,810 146,413 97,540 125,806

Provision for uncollectible loans 86,215 114,733 136,525 97,540 125,806
Additional expense for loan losses 10,780 10,077 9,887 — —

Collection of written-off loans 7,920 6,537 5,384 4,901 5,234

Nonperforming Loans

100

75

50

25

4

6

2

0 0

(¥ billion) (%)

Credits of bankrupt borrowers
Delinquent loans
Delinquent loans three months or 
more past the due date
Restructured loans
Nonperforming loans ratio (%) 

02 03 04 05 06

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Consumer loans outstanding 1,543,288 1,614,524 1,529,055 1,599,636 1,580,983
Nonperforming loans 50,625 65,402 74,007 86,660 84,268
Nonperforming loans ratio (%) 3.28 4.05 4.84 5.42 5.33

Credits of bankrupt borrowers 2,648 4,437 1,694 2,848 1,122
Delinquent loans 706 699 601 2,105 707
Delinquent loans three months or 
more past the due date 9,842 13,849 13,858 11,640 13,048

Restructured loans 37,429 46,417 57,854 70,067 69,391
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Fund Procurement
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Short-term fund procurement
Long-term fund procurement
Actual fixed ratio (%)
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(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Total fund procurement (interest-bearing debt) 1,164,873 1,154,086 1,004,033 916,256 884,783
Short-term fund procurement 24,855 26,990 17,392 82,707 137,726

Ratio of short-term fund procurement (%) 2.1 2.3 1.7 9.0 15.6
Short-term borrowings 19,835 24,395 15,423 82,707 117,726
Commercial paper (CP) 5,020 2,595 1,969 — 20,000

Long-term fund procurement 1,140,017 1,127,096 986,641 833,549 747,057
Ratio of long-term fund procurement (%) 97.9 97.7 98.3 91.0 84.4
Long-term borrowings 828,017 805,096 681,641 568,549 512,057

Fixed interest rate 572,877 581,308 513,917 414,991 317,505
Variable interest rate 255,140 223,787 167,724 153,558 194,552

Of which, interest rate swaps and caps 168,509 161,419 171,562 108,958 129,979
Straight bonds 312,000 322,000 305,000 265,000 235,000

Of which, floating rate notes 20,000 20,000 20,000 10,000 —
Actual fixed ratio (%) 88.7 90.5 96.7 85.0 77.1
Average interest rate on fund procurement (%) 2.09 2.01 1.80 1.76 1.53
Notes: 1. Actual fixed ratio = (long-term borrowings at fixed interest rates + long-term borrowings with interest

rate swaps and caps + straight bonds + convertible bonds) � total fund procurement
2. Figures include interest on bonds and CP but exclude commission payments on interest rate swaps

and caps.

Fund Procurement, by Category 
(As of March 31, 2006)
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City banks
Regional banks 
Long-term credit bank and other
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Life insurance companies
Non-life insurance companies
Other
Corporate bonds and other

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Total fund procurement (interest-bearing debt) 1,164,873 1,154,086 1,004,033 916,256 884,783
Total borrowings 847,852 829,491 697,064 651,256 629,783

City banks 44,120 48,340 37,500 127,510 183,525
Regional banks 61,403 70,127 54,790 38,882 28,675
Long-term credit bank and other 117,010 114,843 104,540 82,820 75,137
Trust banks 216,219 203,120 185,168 156,595 134,188
Non-Japanese banks 64,074 59,370 16,201 13,440 11,893
Cooperative financial institutions 10,252 16,133 16,830 11,413 10,831
Life insurance companies 273,513 265,107 241,651 195,368 168,238
Non-life insurance companies 43,609 40,048 33,802 22,183 15,449
Leasing, finance, and other companies 17,653 12,399 6,581 3,041 1,845

Corporate bonds and other 317,020 324,595 306,969 265,000 255,000
Straight bonds 312,000 322,000 305,000 265,000 235,000
Commercial paper (CP) 5,020 2,595 1,969 — 20,000

Note: Effective April 2004, Shinsei Bank, Limited, became a regular bank. However, it is still included in the long-
term credit bank and other category.

Promise Group’s Fund Procurement

The Company procures long-term borrow-
ings at fixed interest rates, taking into
account market interest rates. At March 31,
2006, the Company’s actual fixed ratio
stood at 77.1%, including corporate bonds.

Since 1996, the Company has issued
corporate bonds and CP to diversify its fund
procurement sources. At March 31, 2006,
corporate bonds and CP as a percentage of
total fund procurement was 28.8%.
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Subsidiaries and Affiliate

( )

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Consolidated subsidiaries 11 10 8 10 10
Affiliate accounted for under the equity method 1 1 1 1 1

Promise Group’s Loan Guarantee Business

Guaranteed Loans Outstanding
(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Guaranteed loans outstanding  — — 2,779 56,965 139,156
Notes: 1. Commencing in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD., and At-Loan

Co., Ltd., have been included in consolidation.
2. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, Promise’s guaranteed loans outstanding rose substantially due to

its new joint consumer finance business with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation and At-Loan.

Reference

As of March 31, 2002 December 2001 Acquired Sun Life Co., Ltd.
Included System Trinity Co., Ltd. (currently, STC Co., Ltd.), in consolidation from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002

As of March 31, 2003 April 2002 Established Plat Corporation (currently, QUOQLOAN INC.) through the merger of Rich, Shinkou, and TOWA 
Acquired MITSUWAKAI Co., Ltd., by GC Co., Ltd.

As of March 31, 2004 July 2003 In Taiwan, Liang Jing Co., Ltd., and Yuukei Co., Ltd., were merged, with Liang Jing as the continuing company
August 2003 GC and MITSUWAKAI were excluded from consolidation when the Company sold all stocks of GC to General Electric Capital

Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. (currently, GE Consumer Finance Co., Ltd.)
Included PAL Servicer Co., Ltd., in consolidation from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004

As of March 31, 2005 Included PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD., and At-Loan Co., Ltd., in consolidation from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005

As of March 31, 2006 June 2005 Plat Corporation changed its name to QUOQLOAN INC. through a business and capital alliance with QUOQ Inc. 
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Promise’s Business Indicators

Non-Consolidated Basis

Consumer Loans Outstanding

1,500

1,000

500

0

(¥ billion)

Secured loans
Unsecured loans

02 03 04 05 06

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Consumer loans outstanding 1,324,663 1,375,693 1,352,847 1,326,794 1,295,316
Year-on-year growth (%) 7.9 3.9 –1.7 –1.9 –2.4

Unsecured loans 1,317,203 1,369,570 1,347,657 1,322,701 1,291,953
Year-on-year growth (%) 7.9 4.0 –1.6 –1.9 –2.3

Secured loans 7,460 6,122 5,189 4,093 3,362
Year-on-year growth (%) –1.6 –17.9 –15.2 –21.1 –17.8

Unsecured Loans Outstanding, by Amount of Account

02 06

1,500

1,000

500

0

(¥ billion)

¥300,000 or less
More than ¥300,000 to ¥500,000
More than ¥500,000 to ¥1,000,000
More than ¥1,000,000 to ¥3,000,000

9.8%

40.0%

29.4%

20.8%
32.2%

22.9%

35.9%

9.0%

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Unsecured loans outstanding 1,317,203 1,369,570 1,347,657 1,322,701 1,291,953
¥300,000 or less 129,644 127,998 122,504 122,064 115,748
More than ¥300,000 to ¥500,000 526,743 491,887 478,650 469,042 463,785
More than ¥500,000 to ¥1,000,000 387,484 353,592 331,288 311,648 296,354
More than ¥1,000,000 to ¥3,000,000 273,330 396,092 415,213 419,945 416,064

Unsecured Loans Outstanding, by Interest Rate

1,500

1,000

500

0

(¥ billion)

27.000–29.200%
25.550%
25.000% or less
Loan balance-linked rates

02 06

4.2%

61.0%

32.8%
2.0% 0.8%

48.5%

49.1%

1.6%

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3
Unsecured loans outstanding 1,317,203 1,369,570 1,347,657 1,322,701 1,291,953

Flat rates
*29.200% 43,126 32,934 25,622 20,254 15,859
*27.000% 12,679 9,240 7,027 5,484 4,319
25.550% 803,079 739,727 704,373 670,684 634,922
25.000% 46,439 51,158 55,191 55,584 53,017
24.500% 40,078 61,313 73,465 80,645 84,489
23.900% 51,830 70,626 80,390 85,249 87,386
23.500% 18,121 35,407 36,725 36,893 38,936
22.995% 156,558 171,073 158,026 146,849 133,582
14.600–22.500% 118,435 177,936 189,042 201,926 218,550
Less than 13.500% — — 1,680 6,205 10,469

Loan balance-linked rates
*23.200–29.200% 8,530 6,523 5,268 4,295 3,432
*23.725–25.550% 9,629 7,075 5,633 4,503 3,651
*22.675–25.550% 7,934 5,918 4,707 3,761 3,050

Other 760 634 502 363 283
Notes: 1. * refers to discontinued products.

2. Loan balance-linked rates are applied to unsecured loans according to the amount of the loans outstanding.
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Unsecured Loans Outstanding, by Area 
(As of March 31, 2006)

9.6%

37.0%

14.1%

18.3%

7.0%
9.8%

4.2%

Hokkaido
Tohoku
Kanto
Chubu

Kinki
Chugoku, Shikoku
Kyushu

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Unsecured loans outstanding 1,317,203 1,369,570 1,347,657 1,322,701 1,291,953
Hokkaido 58,823 60,220 57,156 56,422 54,438
Tohoku 136,177 140,225 141,064 138,103 124,112
Kanto 442,074 472,986 473,993 471,115 478,733
Chubu 188,281 198,086 196,658 193,647 181,614
Kinki 242,275 244,682 233,509 225,434 235,953
Chugoku, Shikoku 100,812 103,125 99,940 97,810 90,812
Kyushu 148,757 150,243 145,334 140,167 126,288

Secured Loans Outstanding, by Area 
(As of March 31, 2006)

7.1%

15.2%

6.9%
49.8%

11.8%

2.9%6.3%

Hokkaido
Tohoku
Kanto
Chubu

Kinki
Chugoku, Shikoku
Kyushu

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Secured loans outstanding 7,460 6,122 5,189 4,093 3,362
Hokkaido 254 232 167 124 96
Tohoku 793 648 572 448 240
Kanto 787 639 591 494 510
Chubu 617 482 423 335 232
Kinki 3,469 2,794 2,270 1,796 1,674
Chugoku, Shikoku 1,036 875 762 607 395
Kyushu 501 450 402 285 213

Number of Customers

Secured loans
Unsecured loans

3,000

2,000

1,000

0

(Thousands)

02 03 04 05 06

(Thousands)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of customers 2,583 2,538 2,441 2,383 2,309
Year-on-year growth (%) 1.5 –1.7 –3.8 –2.4 –3.1

Unsecured loans 2,581 2,536 2,439 2,381 2,307
Secured loans 2 2 1 1 1
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Number of Unsecured Loan Customers, by Gender
(As of March 31, 2006)

Male
Female

27.6%

72.4%
71.7%

28.3%

New 
customers

All 
customers

(Thousands)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

All customers 2,581 2,536 2,439 2,381 2,307
Male 1,850 1,824 1,763 1,725 1,670
Female 730 712 675 656 636

New customers 410 339 300 317 321
Male 295 246 220 231 230
Female 115 92 79 86 90

Number of Unsecured Loan Customers, by Age 
(As of March 31, 2006)

19.5%

10.8%

28.9%
20.8%

20.0%

42.3%

25.1%

16.7%

12.2%

3.7%

Age 20–29
Age 30–39
Age 40–49
Age 50–59
Age 60 or older

All 
customers

New 
customers

(Thousands)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

All customers 2,581 2,536 2,439 2,381 2,307
Age 20–29 624 581 529 494 462
Age 30–39 695 699 688 683 665
Age 40–49 533 519 497 491 480
Age 50–59 485 484 467 457 450
Age 60 or older 242 252 256 255 248

New customers 410 339 300 317 321
Age 20–29 176 147 134 137 135
Age 30–39 92 80 73 80 80
Age 40–49 67 54 46 51 53
Age 50–59 56 43 35 36 39
Age 60 or older 17 13 10 10 12

Number of Unsecured Loan New Customers, by Annual Income 
(As of March 31, 2006)

6.7%

15.7%

23.9%

25.3%

15.4%

7.9%

5.1%

Less than ¥2 million
¥2 million to less than ¥3 million
¥3 million to less than ¥4 million
¥4 million to less than ¥5 million
¥5 million to less than ¥6 million
¥6 million to less than ¥7 million
¥7 million or more

(Thousands)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

New customers 410 339 300 317 321
Less than ¥2 million 57 50 45 49 50
¥2 million to less than ¥3 million 92 78 71 75 76
¥3 million to less than ¥4 million 100 84 76 79 81
¥4 million to less than ¥5 million 65 53 47 49 49
¥5 million to less than ¥6 million 36 28 24 25 25
¥6 million to less than ¥7 million 24 19 16 16 16
¥7 million or more 32 24 20 21 21

Customers with annual incomes of up to ¥7 million accounted for slightly more than 90%
of all new customers. Of the 44.5 million private-sector wage earners in Japan, approxi-
mately 37.9 million fall into this income range (National Tax Agency data, 2004), indicating
substantial latent demand.
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Unsecured Loans Outstanding per Customer
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(¥ thousand)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Unsecured loans outstanding per customer 510 539 552 555 559
Note: Unsecured loans outstanding per customer = unsecured loans outstanding (year-end) � the number of

customers (year-end)

Number of Unsecured Loan Branches

Unstaffed branches
Staffed branches

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

0
02 03 04 05 06

( )

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of unsecured loan branches 1,510 1,541 1,478 1,461 1,474
Staffed branches 457 455 430 418 415
Unstaffed branches 1,053 1,086 1,048 1,043 1,059

Number of automated contract machines 1,462 1,493 1,440 1,444 1,466
Number of loan processing machines — — 123 452 1,013
Note: A loan processing machine is a terminal that receives new loan applications, does a tentative credit evalua-

tion, and issues loan cards. Commencing in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, these terminals are
located in commercial areas in major cities and at roadside locations.

Number of Unsecured Loan Branches, by Area 
(As of March 31, 2006)

9.6%

30.0%

16.6%

17.1%

8.8%

13.0%

4.9%

Hokkaido
Tohoku
Kanto
Chubu

Kinki
Chugoku, Shikoku
Kyushu

( )

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of unsecured loan branches 1,510 1,541 1,478 1,461 1,474
Hokkaido 69 71 69 69 72
Tohoku 148 148 141 140 141
Kanto 459 471 445 440 443
Chubu 243 249 247 242 245
Kinki 263 267 251 250 252
Chugoku, Shikoku 140 140 136 130 130
Kyushu 188 195 189 190 191
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Unsecured Loans Outstanding per Branch
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02 03 04 05 06

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Unsecured loans outstanding per branch 872 888 911 905 876
Note: Unsecured loans outstanding per branch = unsecured loans outstanding (year-end) � the number of

unsecured loan branches (year-end)

Number of Channels

120,000

90,000

60,000

30,000

0

Commercial finance institutions
Sales finance (shinpan) companies
Distributor-affiliated credit card companies
Other

Promise ATMs Tie-up CDs and ATMs

02 03 04 05 06

Per Employee Data

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

0

(¥ thousand)

Net income per employee

02 03 04 05 06

( )

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of employees 3,979 4,075 3,323 3,463 3,582
Male 2,249 2,322 1,778 1,773 1,824
Female 1,730 1,753 1,545 1,690 1,758

Loans outstanding per employee (¥ million) 332 337 407 383 361
Net income per employee (¥ thousand) 15,393 15,070 14,841 19,686 11,444
Notes: 1. Part-time, temporary, and seconded employees are not included in the above figures.

2. Loans outstanding per employee = consumer loans outstanding (year-end) � number of employees
(year-end)

3. Net income per employee = non-consolidated net income � number of employees (year-end)

At March 31, 2006, the average age of employees was 33.0 years (36.6 for males and 29.4
for females), while the average period of continuous service was 8.5 years (11.9 for males
and 5.1 for females).

( )

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of channels 54,491 86,326 98,554 106,580 110,456
Promise ATMs 1,808 1,839 1,725 1,714 1,694
Tie-up CDs and ATMs 52,683 84,487 96,829 104,866 108,762

Commercial finance institutions 46,545 78,701 91,414 100,369 104,688
Sales finance (shinpan) companies 1,581 1,321 1,437 1,095 797
Distributor-affiliated credit card 
companies 3,875 3,693 3,341 3,116 2,961

Other 682 772 637 286 316
Intermediaries:

Convenience stores* 14,069 14,300 14,614 15,123 15,661
* Started tie-ups with FamilyMart Co., Ltd., on September 1998; with LAWSON, INC., on August 2001; and with

Three F Co., Ltd., on March 2002.
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Actual Average Yield of Unsecured Loans

30

20

10

0

(%)

02 03 04 05 06

(%)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Actual average yield of unsecured loans 23.83 23.41 22.87 22.71 22.54

Ratio of Expenses to Actual Average Yield

30

20

10

0

(%)

Operating profit
Financial expenses
Credit losses
Other operating expenses

02 03 04 05 06

(%)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Actual average yield 23.78 23.37 22.84 22.68 22.51
Operating expenses 16.88 16.69 17.90 15.28 19.08

Financial expenses 2.09 2.05 1.94 1.95 1.84
Credit losses 5.94 6.57 8.39 5.77 7.22
Other operating expenses 8.85 8.07 7.57 7.56 10.02

Operating profit 6.89 6.67 4.94 7.40 3.43

Loan Losses
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Loan losses
Loan loss ratio (%)

02 03 04 05 06

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Consumer loans outstanding 1,324,663 1,375,693 1,352,847 1,326,794 1,295,316
Loan losses 55,126 70,462 93,955 88,589 90,659

Unsecured loans 54,948 69,984 93,585 88,210 90,462
Secured loans 178 478 369 379 196

Loan loss ratio (%) 4.16 5.12 6.95 6.68 7.00
Credit losses 76,627 89,463 115,255 77,689 92,809

Provision for uncollectible loans 67,726 86,815 108,017 77,689 92,809
Additional expense for loan losses 8,900 2,647 7,237 — —

Collection of written-off loans 6,419 5,376 4,522 4,226 4,495
Note: Commencing in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, expenses for adjusted installment payments and

claims for indemnities are being included in credit losses on the income statement. However, in the above
figures these expenses have been removed.



Promise Annual Report 2006    37 •

Nonperforming Loans
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Credits of bankrupt borrowers
Delinquent loans
Delinquent loans three months or 
more past the due date
Restructured loans
Nonperforming loans ratio (%) 
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(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Consumer loans outstanding 1,324,663 1,375,693 1,352,847 1,326,794 1,295,316
Nonperforming loans 37,441 50,296 59,681 67,487 72,496
Nonperforming loans ratio (%) 2.83 3.66 4.41 5.09 5.60

Credits of bankrupt borrowers 1,195 2,579 1,135 931 695
Delinquent loans 151 127 160 96 90
Delinquent loans three months or 
more past the due date 7,610 10,583 11,132 9,561 10,964

Restructured loans 28,485 37,006 47,254 56,896 60,745

Promise’s Loan Guarantee Business

Guaranteed Loans Outstanding
(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Guaranteed loans outstanding  — — 2,779 4,818 163,599
Notes: 1. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, Promise’s guaranteed loans outstanding rose substantially due to

its new joint consumer finance business with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation and At-Loan Co., Ltd.
2. Guaranteed loans outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2006, include ¥86,056 million in guaran-

tees of At-Loan loans. 
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Fund Procurement, by Category 
(As of March 31, 2006)

9.8%

16.9%

22.0%

2.0%
2.8%

33.4%

9.9%

3.2%

City banks
Regional banks
Long-term credit bank and other
Trust banks
Life insurance companies
Non-life insurance companies
Other
Corporate bonds and other

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Total fund procurement (interest-bearing debt) 1,042,619 1,039,912 971,632 822,040 763,561
Total borrowings 732,618 719,912 666,632 557,040 508,561

City banks 28,362 33,409 36,327 47,572 75,654
Regional banks 50,909 58,775 50,763 35,595 24,026
Long-term credit bank and other 106,832 94,665 94,540 82,820 75,137
Trust banks 198,093 187,141 180,681 151,834 129,004
Non-Japanese banks 22,200 24,000 7,000 8,000 9,000
Cooperative financial institutions 8,500 13,567 15,286 10,626 10,208
Life insurance companies 263,553 258,326 241,651 195,368 168,238
Non-life insurance companies 43,233 40,048 33,802 22,183 15,449
Leasing, finance, and other companies 10,936 9,980 6,581 3,041 1,845

Corporate bonds and other 310,000 320,000 305,000 265,000 255,000
Straight bonds 310,000 320,000 305,000 265,000 235,000
Commercial paper (CP) — — — — 20,000

Note: Effective April 2004, Shinsei Bank, Limited, became a regular bank. However, it is still included in the long-
term credit bank and other category.

Since 1996, the Company has issued
corporate bonds and CP to diversify
its fund procurement sources. At
March 31, 2006, corporate bonds
and CP as a percentage of total
fund procurement was 33.4%.

Promise’s Fund Procurement

Fund Procurement
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Actual fixed ratio (%)

02 03 04 05 06

(¥ million)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Total fund procurement (interest-bearing debt) 1,042,619 1,039,912 971,632 822,040 763,561
Short-term fund procurement 1,300 1,000 — — 25,432

Ratio of short-term fund procurement (%) 0.1 0.1 — — 3.3
Short-term borrowings 1,300 1,000 — — 5,432
Commercial paper (CP) — — — — 20,000

Long-term fund procurement 1,041,319 1,038,912 971,632 822,040 738,129
Ratio of long-term fund procurement (%) 99.9 99.9 100.0 100.0 96.7
Long-term borrowings 731,318 718,912 666,632 557,040 503,129

Fixed interest rate 520,303 533,903 513,917 412,706 314,356
Variable interest rate 211,015 185,008 152,714 144,333 188,773

Of which, interest rate swaps and caps 158,000 154,000 165,934 105,809 129,979
Straight bonds 310,000 320,000 305,000 265,000 235,000

Of which, floating rate notes 20,000 20,000 20,000 10,000 —
Actual fixed ratio (%) 92.9 95.0 99.3 94.1 89.0
Average interest rate on fund procurement (%) 1.94 1.90 1.76 1.74 1.61
Notes: 1. Actual fixed ratio = (long-term borrowings at fixed interest rates + long-term borrowings with interest

rate swaps and caps + straight bonds + convertible bonds) � total fund procurement
2. Figures include interest on bonds and CP but exclude commission payments on interest rate swaps

and caps.

The Company procures long-term
borrowings at fixed interest rates,
taking into account market interest
rates. At March 31, 2006, the
Company’s actual fixed ratio stood
at 89.0%, including corporate bonds.
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Promise’s Bond Issues (As of March 31, 2006)

Face Amount
Type Date Issued (¥ million) Maturity Date Coupon Rate (%) Rating Purpose

Straight bonds Jul. 28, 1999 20,000 Jul. 28, 2006 2.51 A+ (R&I) Consumer loans funding
Straight bonds Nov. 10, 1999 10,000 Nov. 10, 2009 2.95 A (R&I) Consumer loans funding
Straight bonds Feb. 15, 2000 15,000 Feb. 15, 2010 2.56 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Apr. 26, 2000 10,000 Apr. 25, 2008 2.27 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds May 31, 2000 10,000 Jun. 1, 2012 2.90 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Jun. 14, 2000 20,000 Jun. 14, 2007 2.04 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Apr. 25, 2001 10,000 Apr. 25, 2006 1.70 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Jun. 13, 2001 10,000 Jun. 13, 2008 1.74 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Aug. 10, 2001 15,000 Aug. 10, 2006 1.20 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding
(Retail) A (R&I)
Straight bonds Sep. 26, 2001 10,000 Sep. 26, 2008 1.63 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Oct. 23, 2001 20,000 Oct. 23, 2007 1.40 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds May 29, 2002 10,000 May 29, 2007 1.47 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Jun. 24, 2002 10,000 Jun. 24, 2009 2.05 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Jul. 31, 2002 10,000 Jul. 30, 2010 2.29 AA– (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Dec. 4, 2002 10,000 Dec. 4, 2006 1.00 A+ (JCR) Consumer loans funding
(Retail) A (R&I)
Straight bonds Jun. 4, 2003 15,000 Jun. 4, 2013 1.37 A+ (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Apr. 21, 2004 10,000 Apr. 21, 2014 2.10 A+ (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Apr. 20, 2005 10,000 Apr. 20, 2010 0.79 A+ (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Straight bonds Nov. 28, 2005 10,000 Nov. 28, 2011 1.38 A+ (JCR) Consumer loans funding

A (R&I)
Note: Ratings are those published by JCR (Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd.) and R&I (Rating and Investment Information, Inc.) and are as of the respective date issued.

Ratings of Promise (As of April 30, 2006)
Long-Term Bonds Short-Term Bonds

Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. A+ J-1
Rating and Investment Information, Inc. A a-1
Moody’s Japan K.K. A2 —
STANDARD & POOR’S BBB+ A-2
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Shareholder and Investor Information (As of March 31, 2006)

Common Stock Authorized: 300,000,000 shares

Issued: 134,866,665 shares

Number of Shareholders 7,139

Administrator of Shareholders’ Register The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Company, Limited

4-5-33, Kitahama, Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0041, Japan
Principal Shareholders (Thousands / %)

Percent of 
Name Shareholdings Total Shares Issued

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 27,265 20.22 
Ryoichi Jinnai 10,000 7.41 
Yumiko Jinnai 8,644 6.41 
Hero and Company 6,728 4.99 
Nippon Life Insurance Company 5,704 4.23 
The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Company, Limited 4,000 2.97 
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) 3,891 2.89 
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account) 3,272 2.43 
The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., London 2,643 1.96 
State Street Bank and Trust Company 505103 2,524 1.87 
Total 74,674 55.37
Notes: 1. The shares held by The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Company, Limited, include 3,600 thousand shares

(representing 2.67% of outstanding shares) that have been entrusted to Japan Trustee Services Bank,
Ltd., The Sumitomo Trust and Banking retirement benefit account.

2. In accordance with “Disclosure of large shareholdings” under the Securities and Exchange Law,
Promise received notification from Wellington Management Company, LLP, that it held a total of 7,143
thousand shares (representing 5.30% of outstanding shares) in Promise as of March 31, 2006.
However, at the end of the fiscal year under review, this company was not listed in the registry of share-
holders and Promise is unable to ascertain the number of shares held by this company. As a result, it is
not included in the list of principal shareholders.

Composition of Shareholders 
(As of March 31, 2006)

33.5%

39.4%
17.3%

3.8%

Commercial finance institutions 
Other companies 
Non-Japanese companies 
Individuals and others
Treasury stock

6.0%

(Thousands)

2002/3 2003/3 2004/3 2005/3 2006/3

Number of shares outstanding at year-end 125,966 125,966 125,966 134,866 134,866
Commercial finance institutions 42,380 43,196 36,936 58,047 53,187

Percentage of total (%) 33.6 34.3 29.3 43.1 39.4
Other companies 4,851 4,897 6,347 5,391 5,085

Percentage of total (%) 3.9 3.9 5.0 4.0 3.8
Non-Japanese companies 40,171 39,298 45,071 45,888 45,144

Percentage of total (%) 31.9 31.2 35.8 34.0 33.5
Individuals and others 38,210 37,519 32,663 25,185 23,401

Percentage of total (%) 30.3 29.8 26.0 18.7 17.3
Treasury stock 352 1,054 4,948 354 8,047

Percentage of total (%) 0.3 0.8 3.9 0.2 6.0
Number of shareholders 9,106 9,422 6,210 5,710 7,139
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
and Risk Factors
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Overview

+3.2% 
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, Japan’s gross

domestic product (GDP) grew 3.2% in real terms. Reflecting

the rebound in corporate performances and such positive

signs as growth in capital investment and improvement in the

labor environment, the domestic economy mounted an over-

all mild recovery. However, there were differences in the

impact of the recovery among companies depending on cor-

porate scale, industry, and region of operations. In addition,

the sharp rise in crude oil prices and movements in exchange

rates created uncertainty and remain issues for the future. 

181,860 applications 
for bankruptcy
The number of applications for personal bankruptcy in the

period from April 2005 to March 2006 fell 9.5%, to 181,860,

marking the second year of consecutive decline. However, the

number of legal proceedings initiated for loan restructuring by

lawyers and judicial scriveners on behalf of debtors increased

during the year.  

Competition in the consumer finance market continued

to intensify during the fiscal year due to business alliances

that cross industries or business categories and to new market

entries. In addition, the continued high level of unemploy-

ment amount young people, Promise’s core customer base,

makes it difficult to predict the direction of the market. 

In this tough operating environment, Promise Co., Ltd.,

and its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Promise Group”)

endeavored to achieve early realization of the benefits of the

business alliance with Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.

(SMFG), and to strengthen the Group’s earnings base by rein-

forcing sales capabilities and raising business efficiency. 

Results of Operations

+3.1%
Consolidated total operating income in the fiscal year ended

March 2006 increased 3.1%, to ¥381.3 billion. Growth can

mainly be attributed to the operating income of At-Loan Co.,

Ltd., which was included in the scope of consolidation in the

fiscal year under review. At-Loan became a consolidated sub-

sidiary at the end of the previous fiscal year, at which time its

balance sheet was included in consolidation. Consumer loans

outstanding decreased 1.2% year on year, to ¥1,581.0 bil-

lion. This decline primarily resulted from stricter credit scoring

implemented by the Company in view of the rising trend in

nonperforming loans, which caused Promise’s consumer loans

outstanding to decrease 2.4%. On the other hand, At-Loan’s

consumer loans outstanding increased 15.6%, reducing the

decline in consolidated consumer loans outstanding.    

The Promise Group is striving to achieve growth in con-

sumer loans outstanding by meeting the needs of a broad

base of consumers through its full-line interest rate strategy.

Promise, offers loans within an interest rate band of 17.8% to

25.55%, while subsidiaries QUOQLOAN INC. and Sun Life

Co., Ltd., supply loans with interest rates up to the legal ceil-

ing of 29.2%. Furthermore, At-Loan and MOBIT CO., LTD.,

which is accounted for by the equity method, provide loans at

either 15.0% or 18.0%. Consequently, the Promise Group

offers interest rates over a wide range—15.0% to 29.2%.  

During the fiscal year, Promise began a new joint con-

sumer finance business with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking

Corporation and At-Loan. The new business is the reason

behind the large increase in the consumer loans outstanding

of At-Loan. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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7.00%
In contrast to the decline in applications for bankruptcy, the

number of legal proceedings for loan restructuring initiated by

lawyers and judicial scriveners increased during the fiscal year,

and the loan loss ratio remained at a high level. Loan losses of

Promise totaled ¥90.7 billion, amounting to 7.00% of its con-

sumer loans outstanding. This represents an increase of 0.32

percentage points from 6.68% recorded in the previous fiscal

year. 

Operating Expenses

+30.0%
Total operating expenses grew 30.0%, to ¥313.9 billion, with

financial expenses and personnel costs being two major

expense components. Financial expenses fell 12.8%, to ¥15.5

billion. As a proportion of total operating expenses, financial

expenses declined to 4.9%, from 7.4% in the previous fiscal

year. Personnel costs decreased 15.0%, to ¥30.4 billion. As a

proportion of total operating expenses, personnel costs

declined to 9.7%, from 14.8% in the previous fiscal year. The

decline in financial expenses and personnel expenses as a pro-

portion of total expenses compared with the previous fiscal

year was due to the sharp rise in the proportion of interest

repayment expenses in total operating expenses.

52.3%
Accounting for the highest proportion of operating expenses,

credit losses increased 29.0% year on year, to ¥125.8 billion.

As a proportion of total operating expenses, credit losses

decreased to 40.1%, from 40.4% in the previous fiscal year.

However, interest repayment expenses, including allowance

for losses on interest repayments, soared 544.0%, to ¥38.4

billion. As a proportion of total operating expenses, interest

repayment expenses increased to 12.2%, from 2.5% in the

previous fiscal year. As a proportion of total operating expens-

es, credit losses and interest repayment expenses rose to

52.3%, from 42.8% in the previous fiscal year. In considera-

tion of the increase in interest repayment claims through legal

proceedings for loan restructuring, individual consumer

finance companies began to make an allowance for losses on

interest repayments in the fiscal year under review. The sharp

increase in interest repayments expenses can be attributed to

the setting up of this reserve.

Profit

–44.2%
As a result of the above factors, operating profit contracted

47.5%, to ¥67.4 billion. 

Net income amounted to ¥42.0 billion, dropping 44.2%

from the previous fiscal year. In the previous year, net extraor-

dinary losses amounted to ¥3.6 billion, comprised of ¥1.3 bil-

lion in impairment loss and ¥1.3 billion in loss on valuation of

investments in subsidiaries. During the fiscal year under

review, the Company posted net extraordinary income of

¥1.3 billion due to gains of ¥7.8 billion income on return of

substitutional portion of the Welfare Pension Fund Plan. As a

result, the drop in net income was approximately the same as

the declines in operating profit. 



• 44

Financial Condition

44.1%
Total assets of the Promise Group edged down 1.4% from

the previous fiscal year-end, to ¥1,760.2 billion. The principal

factor in this contraction was the previously mentioned

decrease in consumer loans outstanding, which accounted for

89.8% of total assets. Short-term loans declined to ¥10.5 bil-

lion, from ¥44.4 billion at the end of the previous fiscal year.

As a result, current assets dropped 2.7%, to ¥1,598.5 billion.

On the other hand, investments and advance increased

45.3%, to ¥74.8 billion, chiefly because of the higher market

value of the Company’s investment in securities due to the

upswing in the stock market. 

In line with the decline in consumer loans outstanding,

Promise applied available surplus funds to the repayment of

loans. As a result, total interest-bearing debt—short-term 

borrowings, current portion of long-term debt, and long-term

debt—decreased to ¥884.8 billion, from ¥916.3 billion at the

previous fiscal year-end. However, the Company also booked

a ¥24.0 billion allowance for losses on interest repayments.

Current liabilities, therefore, increased 11.4% year on year, to

¥409.7 billion. Long-term liabilities fell 8.3%, to ¥562.1 bil-

lion. Retained earnings and net unrealized gain on securities

rose during the fiscal year, but the Company’s acquisition of

¥54.7 billion of treasury stock forced shareholders’ equity

down 2.2%, to ¥776.4 billion. The shareholders’ equity ratio

declined 0.4 percentage points, to 44.1%, remaining at a

high level. 

Fund Procurement

77.1%
Of the Promise Group’s ¥884.8 billion in interest-bearing debt

at fiscal year-end, short-term and long-term debt accounted

for ¥629.8 billion, or 71.2%, with the remaining ¥255.0 bil-

lion taken up by bonds. Looking at maturities, short-term

fund procurement amounted to ¥137.7 billion. The ratio of

short-term fund procurement to interest-bearing debt rose

6.6 percentage points, from 9.0% to 15.6%, because At-

Loan increased its short-term borrowings, at a low interest

rate, to expand its consumer loans outstanding. The remaining

84.4% was accounted for by long-term fund procurement.

The Promise Group minimizes the market interest rate

risk on funds by increasing the proportion of fixed interest

rate funds within its total financing. This goal is being

achieved through the aggressive use of fixed interest rates on

loan agreements, derivatives, and fixed rate coupons on its

corporate bonds. Nevertheless, in the fiscal year under review

the ratio of fixed interest rates in total financing declined to

77.1% from 85.0% in the previous fiscal year because of the

rise in the proportion of short-term borrowings. The average

interest rate on fund procurement declined to 1.53%, from

1.76% at the end of the previous year, contributing to

reduced financial expenses.
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Cash Flows

–47.0 billion
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year amounted to

¥63.9 billion, down ¥47.0 billion from the beginning of the

fiscal year. The decline in cash and cash equivalents can be

mainly attributed to lower net cash inflow from operating

activities, acquisition of investments in securities in investing

activities, and reduction in interest-bearing debt in financing

activities.

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled ¥74.6

billion, compared with ¥107.7 billion in the previous fiscal

year, down ¥33.2 billion. The major reason for this fall was a

¥55.8 billion drop in income before income taxes and minori-

ty interests from the previous fiscal year, to ¥71.3 billion.

Because the factors behind the decline in profits, such as the

increase in allowance for credit losses and the establishment

of allowance for losses on interest repayments, were non-cash

expenses, the decrease in cash flow was smaller than the

decline in profits.   

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥25.8

billion, compared with ¥14.4 billion in the previous year, rep-

resenting an ¥11.4 billion increase in net cash used. Net cash

outflow can largely be attributed to ¥6.3 billion in payment

for purchase of property and equipment, ¥5.1 billion in pay-

ment for purchase of intangible fixed assets, and ¥15.2 billion

in payment for purchase of investments in securities.  

Net cash used in financing activities totaled ¥95.7 billion,

increasing ¥11.8 billion from ¥83.9 billion used in the previ-

ous fiscal year. Continuing from the previous fiscal year,

repayments of short-term borrowings and long-term debt

exceeded proceeds from short-term borrowings and long-

term debt because consumer loans outstanding decreased. In

addition, cash outflow increased due to a ¥54.7 billion

increase in treasury stock. 

Business Outlook

+22.7%
The Promise Group expects that consolidated consumer loans

outstanding will expand 4.4%, to ¥1,650.0 billion in the fiscal

year ending March 31, 2007. The Group plans to attain the

maximum benefits from the business alliance with SMFG,

aiming to increase consumer loans outstanding. Along with

the growth in loans, the Group anticipates that total operat-

ing income will increase 1.4%, to ¥386.8 billion. Looking at

cost forecasts, the Group expects that total operating expenses

will decline due to an end to investments in the start-up of

the new joint consumer finance business and to a decrease in

interest repayment expenses. Consequently, operating profit

is forecast to grow 26.5%, to ¥85.2 billion. Net income is

projected to expand 22.7%, to ¥51.6 billion.

These forecasts are judgments prepared by the Promise

Group based on information available at the time these esti-

mates were made and are subject to latent risks and uncer-

tainties. Accordingly, if the various factors that are the basis

for these forecasts differ from the assumptions made by the

Group, actual performance may differ substantially from these

predictions.



• 46

Regulatory Risk regarding Restrictions on
Interest Rates on Loans
1. Risk of reduction in interest rates allowed under the

Capital Subscription Law
Negative impact on the Group’s performance:
• If the maximum interest rate is revised to a figure lower than the

current 29.2%
The maximum interest rate under the Capital Subscription Law is 29.2%.
All of the Promise Group’s consumer finance companies in Japan lend
money at interest rates at or below this ceiling. However, the Money
Lending and Capital Subscription Partial Revision Law, which was
announced in August 2003, states that the ceiling on interest rates shall
be reviewed as necessary about three years after the enforcement of the
Money Lending and Capital Subscription Partial Revision Law.
2. Risk of Interest in Excess of the Interest Rate

Restriction Law
Negative impact on the Group’s performance:
• If the interest repayment amount exceeds the expected amount
• If the ongoing revision of related laws should not be in the Group’s

favor
A portion of the maximum interest rate for the consumer finance compa-
nies of the Promise Group is in excess of the maximum interest rate stipu-
lated in the Interest Rate Restriction Law (allowed annual rates on loans
with principal of 15% to 20%). The transaction will be deemed a valid
repayment of interest under the following conditions: if the debtor com-
plies with requirements of voluntarily paying the excessive portion as inter-
est; and if the moneylender delivers the written documents at the time of
concluding the loan agreement and issues the receipt immediately on pay-
ment. However, the recent Supreme Court decision has caused changes in
the interpretation of law, which have had a significant impact on the per-
formance of consumer finance companies. Furthermore, along with the
increase in legal processes for loan restructuring by lawyers and judicial
scriveners, there has been a steady increase in interest repayment claims
as a portion of interest paid in excess of the interest rate stipulated in
the Interest Rate Restriction Law. The Company set up an allowance for
losses on interest repayments in the fiscal year under review.

Regulatory Risk regarding Business
Restrictions under the Regulatory Law
Negative impact on the Group’s performance:
• If some violation triggered administrative measures by the Financial

Services Agency
• If business became more restricted as a result of a change due to a

revision of laws
The consumer finance companies of the Promise Group are governed 
by the various business regulations (prohibition of excessive lending, 

disclosure of loan conditions, prohibition of exaggerated advertising,
exchange of written documentation, exchange of receipts, restrictions on
loan collection activities, and so on) under the Regulatory Law. 

The moneylenders associations of each prefecture and the
Federation of Moneylenders Association of Japan also have self-regula-
tory rules to ensure sound lending, loan collection, and advertising. The
companies of the Promise Group comply with these rules.

Fund Raising and Interest Rates on Financing
Negative impact on the Group’s performance:
• If interest rates rise or the financing environment deteriorates

markedly beyond currently foreseen levels (Systematic fund raising
might become difficult.)

The Group has actively issued bonds and has sought to diversify its fund-
ing sources with borrowings from financial institutions, fixed interest rate
long-term bonds, and syndicated loans. To minimize interest rate risk,
the Group hedges its exposure using interest rate caps and uses interest
rate swaps while also obtaining commitment line agreements to secure
alternate sources of funds in preparation for sudden changes in the
financing environment. Through these and other measures, the Group
aims to achieve stable fund procurement at low cost.

Business and Capital Alliance with Sumitomo
Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. (SMFG)
Negative impact on the Group’s performance:
• If performance does not proceed as planned due to a sudden

change in the business climate or other factors
• If there were a change in the Banking Law or other related laws
• If SMFG were to acquire more than a certain proportion of the out-

standing shares of the Company
The Company has formed a business and capital alliance with SMFG,
and at March 31, 2006, SMFG held 21.5% of the voting shares in
Promise.

Other Risks
Among the other risks the Promise Group is exposed to are the increas-
ing multiple indebtedness and the default of loans made to consumers,
the handling of Personal Information and the Information Privacy Law, the
liberalization of regulations, computer system failure, and country risk.

Risk Factors

The following is a description of the major risk factors that the Promise Group is exposed to regarding its
business, performance, and financial position.

Cognizant of the potential risks described below, the Promise Group takes steps to prevent these risks
from materializing and to respond promptly when problems arise. However, it should be noted that the
risks described below may not represent a complete coverage of the risks faced by the Group.
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Six-Year Summary (Consolidated Basis)

Promise Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Millions of Yen

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Results of operations:
Interest on consumer loans ¥ 360,589 ¥ 352,330 ¥ 368,663 ¥ 381,126 ¥ 362,760 ¥ 327,821
Other operating income 19,749 14,769 14,119 19,624 19,449 19,199
Total operating income 381,297 369,860 390,981 410,619 394,495 359,641
Financial expenses 15,497 17,777 21,399 24,802 24,868 26,714
General and administrative expenses 171,920 124,462 128,148 145,509 147,493 138,407
Credit losses including provision 
for uncollectible loans 125,806 97,540 146,413 124,810 96,996 55,990

Total operating expenses 313,945 241,559 303,112 303,661 279,977 232,223
Operating profit 67,352 128,301 87,869 106,958 114,518 127,418
Income before income taxes and 
minority interests 71,332 127,174 79,138 105,806 112,308 107,392

Net income 42,047 75,379 41,576 60,716 62,941 64,845

Financial position:
Consumer loans receivable: Principal ¥1,580,983 ¥1,599,636 ¥1,529,055 ¥1,614,524 ¥1,543,288 ¥1,418,656
Allowance for credit losses (current assets) 135,441 130,353 133,393 114,550 86,667 61,138
Total current assets 1,598,528 1,643,604 1,573,563 1,737,506 1,703,180 1,565,165
Total investments and advances 74,815 51,486 55,322 65,249 70,304 54,644
Property and equipment, net 76,728 79,528 79,637 39,008 45,371 44,354
Fixed leasehold deposits 10,115 10,525 10,199 13,590 14,922 15,231
Total assets 1,760,186 1,785,143 1,718,721 1,855,353 1,833,777 1,679,394
Short-term borrowings and current 
portion of long-term debt 334,833 320,831 264,390 305,745 265,958 305,114

Total current liabilities 409,714 367,633 323,226 366,319 340,165 354,540
Long-term debt 549,950 595,425 739,643 848,341 898,915 789,160
Total long-term liabilities 562,054 612,669 758,828 870,924 918,746 807,350
Total shareholders’ equity 776,358 793,987 636,667 618,110 574,866 517,504

Other financial data and indicators:
Depreciation and amortization ¥ 9,243 ¥ 6,870 ¥ 6,768 ¥ 8,714 ¥ 8,611 ¥ 9,266
Ratio of consolidated to non-consolidated  
operating income (Times) 1.23 1.18 1.21 1.25 1.24 1.22

Ratio of consolidated to non-consolidated  
net income (Times) 1.02 1.10 0.84 0.98 1.02 1.02

Return on equity (ROE) (%) 5.35 10.53 6.62 10.17 11.52 13.57
Return on assets (ROA) (%) 2.37 4.30 2.32 3.29 3.58 4.10

Amount per share (Yen):
Net income:

Basic ¥ 321.38 ¥ 576.05 ¥ 342.19 ¥ 483.62 ¥ 504.78 ¥ 525.02
Diluted — 575.88 — — 503.23 —

Cash dividends 105.00 105.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 90.00

1. Depreciation and amortization on the consolidated statements of cash flows excludes new common stock issue expense and amortization expenses.
2. Net income, basic, per share has been restated to conform with International Accounting Standards’ Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 15 (APB-15),

“Earnings per Share”.
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Promise Co., Ltd.
Years ended March 31

Six-Year Summary (Non-Consolidated Basis)

Millions of Yen

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Results of operations:
Interest on consumer loans ¥ 296,730 ¥ 305,471 ¥ 314,682 ¥ 318,068 ¥ 306,847 ¥ 282,664
Other operating income 11,230 7,571 7,486 8,488 9,400 10,110
Total operating income 307,960 313,042 322,168 326,556 316,247 292,774
Financial expenses 14,558 17,432 20,137 21,817 21,179 22,069
General and administrative expenses 132,104 101,791 104,041 109,857 114,276 110,700
Credit losses including provision 
for uncollectible loans 95,088 77,689 115,255 89,463 76,627 43,827

Total operating expenses 241,750 196,912 239,433 221,137 212,082 176,596
Operating profit 66,210 116,130 82,735 105,419 104,165 116,178
Income before income taxes 68,889 114,895 85,124 106,005 106,423 101,853
Net income 40,994 68,174 49,319 61,412 61,250 63,521

Financial position:
Consumer loans receivable: Principal ¥1,295,316 ¥1,326,794 ¥1,352,847 ¥1,375,693 ¥1,324,663 ¥1,228,026
Allowance for credit losses (current assets) 101,500 97,400 108,300 87,000 68,000 46,500
Total current assets 1,402,648 1,480,748 1,502,382 1,567,424 1,529,481 1,381,819
Total investments and advances 119,897 94,304 87,948 94,422 98,302 77,582
Property and equipment, net 66,613 68,714 68,567 26,433 30,305 31,886
Fixed leasehold deposits 9,191 9,332 9,237 12,201 12,393 12,632
Total assets 1,598,349 1,653,098 1,668,134 1,700,480 1,670,481 1,503,919
Short-term borrowings and current 
portion of long-term debt 218,897 235,711 239,555 245,435 221,217 245,107

Total current liabilities 291,406 277,307 295,199 289,908 279,035 279,881
Long-term debt 544,664 586,329 732,077 794,477 821,402 707,247
Total long-term liabilities 552,280 601,305 748,924 813,308 838,557 722,706
Total shareholders’ equity 754,663 774,486 624,011 597,264 552,889 501,332

Other financial data and indicators:
Credit losses written off ¥ 90,659 ¥ 88,589 ¥ 93,955 ¥ 70,462 ¥ 55,126 ¥ 36,437
Return on equity (ROE) (%) 5.36 9.74 8.07 10.67 11.62 13.63
Return on assets (ROA) (%) 2.52 4.10 2.92 3.64 3.85 4.44

Amount per share (Yen):
Net income:

Basic ¥ 313.42 ¥ 521.02 ¥ 406.05 ¥ 488.87 ¥ 491.09 ¥ 513.24
Diluted — 520.87 — — 489.71 —

Shareholders’ equity 5,950.17 5,756.77 5,155.72 4,780.81 4,401.48 4,019.80
Payout ratio (%) 33.50 20.15 24.62 20.46 20.40 17.55

Net income, basic, per share has been restated to conform with International Accounting Standards’ Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 15 (APB-15),
“Earnings per Share”.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Promise Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2006 and 2005

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen (Note 3)

2006 2005 2006

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) ¥ 63,851 ¥ 110,854 $ 543,555
Time deposits (Note 11) 1,787 825 15,213
Receivables and consumer loans:

Notes and accounts receivable 4,137 969 35,219
Consumer loans receivable (Notes 5 and 11):

Principal 1,580,983 1,599,636 13,458,607
Accrued interest income 14,406 14,740 122,640

Less: Allowance for credit losses (Note 6) (135,441) (130,353) (1,152,983)
1,464,085 1,484,992 12,463,483

Prepaid expenses 1,541 1,807 13,119
Deferred tax assets (Note 20) 45,596 29,661 388,150
Other current assets 21,668 15,465 184,446

Total current assets 1,598,528 1,643,604 13,607,966

Investments and advances:
Investments in securities (Note 7) 39,761 12,014 338,480
Investments in and advances to 
unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 9,482 6,636 80,721

Investments in equity other than capital stock 5 5 47
Long-term prepaid expenses 1,633 989 13,899
Excess investment cost over net assets of 
consolidated subsidiaries acquired, net 11,965 14,486 101,854

Deferred tax assets (Note 20) 985 4,658 8,383
Other investments and advances 11,217 12,934 95,485
Less: Allowance for credit losses (Note 6) (233) (236) (1,980)

Total investments and advances 74,815 51,486 636,889

Property and equipment, net (Notes 9 and 11) 76,728 79,528 653,174
Fixed leasehold deposits (Note 10) 10,115 10,525 86,103

Total assets ¥1,760,186 ¥1,785,143 $14,984,132

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen (Note 3)

2006 2005 2006

LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings (Note 11) ¥ 137,726 ¥ 82,707 $ 1,172,437
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 11) 197,107 238,124 1,677,932
Accounts payable:

Trade 2,518 710 21,434
Other 7,290 10,077 62,064

9,808 10,787 83,498
Accrued income taxes (Note 20) 26,836 25,880 228,446
Accruals for debt guarantees (Note 2 (12)) 4,391 923 37,380
Accrued expenses 7,454 7,321 63,457
Allowance for losses on interest repayments (Note 2 (14)) 23,970 — 204,052
Other current liabilities 2,422 1,891 20,619

Total current liabilities 409,714 367,633 3,487,821

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 11) 549,950 595,425 4,681,620
Non-current accounts payable 199 349 1,696
Accrued severance indemnities (Note 12) 2,470 14,711 21,027
Accruals for loss guarantees (Note 2 (13)) 2,000 860 17,026
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 20) 6,130 — 52,183
Other long-term liabilities 1,305 1,324 11,109

Total long-term liabilities 562,054 612,669 4,784,661

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Notes 5, 11, 13 and 14)

Minority interests 12,060 10,854 102,663

Shareholders’ equity (Note 15):
Common stock:

Authorized—300,000,000 shares
Issued—134,866,665 shares at March 31, 2006 80,738 — 687,305
Issued—134,866,665 shares at March 31, 2005 — 80,738 —

Capital surplus 138,414 138,458 1,178,293
Retained earnings 602,908 575,197 5,132,441
Net unrealized gain on securities 11,607 3,432 98,811
Foreign currency translation adjustments 110 (1,051) 933
Less: Treasury stock—8,047,638 shares at March 31, 2006 (57,419) — (488,796)
Less: Treasury stock—352,305 shares at March 31, 2005 — (2,787) —

Total shareholders’ equity 776,358 793,987 6,608,987
Total liabilities, minority interests and 
shareholders’ equity ¥1,760,186 ¥1,785,143 $14,984,132



Consolidated Statements of Income

Promise Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen (Note 3)

2006 2005 2006

Operating income:
Interest on consumer loans ¥360,589 ¥352,330 $3,069,624
Sales 959 2,761 8,161
Other operating income (Note 16) 19,749 14,769 168,128

Total operating income 381,297 369,860 3,245,913

Operating expenses:
Financial expenses (Note 17) 15,497 17,777 131,922
Cost of sales 722 1,780 6,145
General and administrative expenses (Note 18) 171,920 124,462 1,463,528
Provision for uncollectible loans (Note 6) 125,806 97,540 1,070,964

Total operating expenses 313,945 241,559 2,672,559
Operating profit 67,352 128,301 573,354

Other income (expenses):
Interest and dividend income on investments 263 1,349 2,240
Stock issue expenses (22) (231) (189)
Interest expense (48) (82) (407)
Equity in earnings of Tokumei Kumiai 311 639 2,646
Net gain on sales of investments in securities (Note 7) 584 703 4,971
Loss on valuation of investments in securities (Note 7) (50) (30) (423)
Net loss on sales or disposal of property and equipment (859) (1,367) (7,314)
Impairment loss (Note 19) (2,622) (1,268) (22,319)
Loss on sales of credit (1,781) (384) (15,164)
Loss on valuation of investments in subsidiaries — (1,257) —
Provision for loss guarantees (Note 2 (13)) (1,140) — (9,703)
Equity in net gain of affiliated companies 1,260 400 10,729
Expense for relocation of offices (615) (266) (5,239)
Gains on return of substitutional portion of the Welfare Pension
Fund Plan (Note 12) 7,766 — 66,110

Loss resulting from change in the Company’s share of subsidiaries (317) — (2,702)
Impairment loss on deposits for golf club membership (30) (39) (258)
Other, net 1,280 706 10,900

Total other income (expenses), net 3,980 (1,127) 33,878
Income before income taxes and minority interests 71,332 127,174 607,232

Income taxes (Note 20):
Current 45,702 41,569 389,049
Deferred (11,697) 10,438 (99,574)

34,005 52,007 289,475
Minority interests in net loss of consolidated subsidiaries 4,720 212 40,178

Net income ¥ 42,047 ¥ 75,379 $ 357,935

U.S. Dollars
Yen (Note 3)

Amount per share (Note 23):
Net income:

Basic ¥321.38 ¥576.05 $2.74
Diluted — 575.88 —

Cash dividends 105.00 105.00 0.89
Weighted average number of shares (Thousands):

Basic 130,581 130,622
Diluted — 130,660

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Promise Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Millions of Yen

Net Foreign
Number of unrealized currency
shares of Common Capital Retained gain on translation Treasury

common stock stock surplus earnings securities adjustments stock

Balance at March 31, 2004 125,966,665 ¥49,054 ¥ 92,288 ¥512,784 ¥ 4,151 ¥ (814) ¥(20,796)
Net income — — — 75,379 — — —
Cash dividends paid — — — (12,770) — — —
Bonuses to directors and 
corporate auditors — — — (84) — — —

Gains on sales of treasury stock — — 14,486 — — — —
Decrease due to inclusion of 
a company in consolidation — — — (112) — — —

Allocation of new shares to 
a third party 8,900,000 31,684 31,684 — — — —

Decrease due to valuation of 
securities, net of tax — — — — (719) — —

Adjustments on foreign currency 
financial statement translation — — — — — (237) —

Decrease in treasury stock — — — — — — 18,009
Balance at March 31, 2005 134,866,665 ¥80,738 ¥138,458 ¥575,197 ¥ 3,432 ¥(1,051) ¥ (2,787)

Net income — — — 42,047 — — —
Cash dividends paid — — — (14,202) — — —
Bonuses to directors and 
corporate auditors — — — (134) — — —

Loss on sales of treasury stock — — (44) — — — —
Increase due to valuation of 
securities, net of tax — — — — 8,175 — —

Adjustments on foreign currency 
financial statement translation — — — — — 1,161 —

Increase in treasury stock — — — — — — (54,632)
Balance at March 31, 2006 134,866,665 ¥80,738 ¥138,414 ¥602,908 ¥11,607 ¥ 110 ¥(57,419)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

Net Foreign
unrealized currency

Common Capital Retained gain on translation Treasury
stock surplus earnings securities adjustments stock

Balance at March 31, 2005 $687,305 $1,178,667 $4,896,542 $29,216 $(8,950) $ (23,723)
Net income — — 357,935 — — —
Cash dividends paid — — (120,898) — — —
Bonuses to directors and 
corporate auditors — — (1,138) — — —

Loss on sales of treasury stock — (374) — — — —
Increase due to valuation of 
securities, net of tax — — — 69,595 — —

Adjustments on foreign currency 
financial statement translation — — — — 9,883 —

Increase in treasury stock — — — — — (465,073)
Balance at March 31, 2006 $687,305 $1,178,293 $5,132,441 $98,811 $ 933 $(488,796)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Promise Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen (Note 3)

2006 2005 2006

Operating activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 71,332 ¥ 127,174 $ 607,232
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 9,243 6,870 78,687
Increase (decrease) in allowance for credit losses 4,474 (11,707) 38,086
Impairment loss 2,622 1,268 22,319
Loss on sales of credit — 384 —
Increase (decrease) in accrued severance indemnities (12,241) 1,011 (104,209)
Equity in earnings of Tokumei Kumiai (311) (639) (2,646)
Net gain on sales of investments in securities (584) (703) (4,971)
Loss on valuation of investments in subsidiaries — 1,257 —
Net loss on sales or disposal of property and equipment 859 1,367 7,314
Equity in net gain of affiliated companies (1,260) (400) (10,729)
Increase in accruals for debt guarantees 3,402 123 28,963
Increase in allowance for losses on interest repayments 23,970 — 204,052
Increase (decrease) in accruals for loss guarantees 1,140 (1,840) 9,703
Decrease in consumer loans receivable: Principal 21,215 31,282 180,597
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable (4,876) 6,764 (41,507)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,796 (4,326) 15,289
Payment of special retirement allowance — (18,746) —
Income taxes paid (44,778) (31,778) (381,188)
Other, net (1,451) 382 (12,345)

Net cash provided by operating activities 74,552 107,743 634,647
Investing activities:

Payment for purchase of property and equipment (6,290) (7,426) (53,545)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 41 159 354
Payment for purchase of intangible fixed assets (5,059) (2,159) (43,070)
Payment for purchase of investments in securities (15,227) (5) (129,624)
Proceeds from sales of investments in securities 1,420 1,802 12,084
Redemption of beneficial interest in trust — 13,300 —
Payment for purchase of shares of subsidiaries (1,586) (320) (13,499)
Proceeds from sales of shares of subsidiaries 412 — 3,509
Acquisition of shares of subsidiaries resulted in the change 
in scope of consolidation — (19,498) —

Increase in loans (530) — (4,515)
Decrease in loans 30 39 255
Decrease (increase) in other investments 987 (280) 8,404

Net cash used in investing activities (25,802) (14,388) (219,647)
Financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term debt 143,365 110,621 1,220,441
Repayments of long-term debt (198,202) (223,508) (1,687,254)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, net of expenses 19,887 9,902 169,291
Redemption of bonds (50,000) (50,000) (425,641)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock — 63,137 —
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 52,173 (13,772) 444,141
Decrease (increase) in treasury stock (54,676) 32,496 (465,446)
Cash dividends paid (14,202) (12,770) (120,898)
Proceeds of capital contributions by minority shareholders 5,925 — 50,440

Net cash used in financing activities (95,730) (83,894) (814,926)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (23) (32) (194)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (47,003) 9,429 (400,120)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 110,854 101,111 943,675
Effect of the increase in scope of consolidated subsidiaries — 314 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ¥ 63,851 ¥ 110,854 $ 543,555
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest ¥ 14,719 ¥ 16,659 $ 125,913

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BASIS OF PRESENTING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting records of Promise Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries are maintained in
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Commercial Code of Japan (the “Commercial Code”) and in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

The accounts of overseas subsidiaries consolidated with the Company are based on the financial statements prepared
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) prevailing in the countries where the subsidiaries
have been incorporated. Financial statements have not been materially affected by the differences between the GAAP
prevailing in these countries and Japanese GAAP. Therefore, no adjustments have been reflected in the accompanying con-
solidated financial statements to present the accounts of the subsidiaries in compliance with Japanese accounting principles.

Certain account balances, as disclosed in the basic consolidated financial statements in Japan, have been summarized or
reclassified to the extent deemed necessary to enable presentation in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Scope and Significant Accounting Policies
The Company had 15 subsidiaries and 2 affiliates as of March 31, 2006 and 14 subsidiaries and 2 affiliates as of March 31,
2005. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and 10 of its subsidiaries
(together, the “Companies”) as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, which are listed below:
Name Country of incorporation Fiscal year-end

QUOQLOAN INC.  *1 Japan March 31
Sun Life Co., Ltd. Japan March 31
PAL Servicer Co., Ltd. Japan March 31
PAL Life Co., Ltd. Japan March 31
Net Future Co., Ltd. Japan March 31
STC Co., Ltd. *2 Japan March 31
At-Loan Co., Ltd. *3 Japan March 31
PROMISE (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. Hong Kong December 31
Liang Jing Co., Ltd. Taiwan December 31
PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD. *4 Taiwan December 31

*1. Plat Corporation has been renamed QUOQLOAN INC. on June 13, 2005. In October 2005, QUOQLOAN INC. allocated new shares to a third party. As a result,
share of the Company changed to 85% from 100% and a loss resulting from this transaction was recognized in the consolidated statements of income.

*2. System Trinity Co., Ltd. has been renamed STC Co., Ltd. on July 1, 2004.
*3. At-Loan Co., Ltd. has been consolidated on the balance sheet at the year ended March 31, 2005 since the Company’s share of possession of voting rights

exceeded 50% through allocation of new stocks to third parties.
*4. PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD. has been included in consolidation from the year ended March 31, 2005.

The remaining 5 unconsolidated subsidiaries at March 31, 2006 were not consolidated because their aggregate amount
of sales, assets, net income and retained earnings were not material to the consolidated results of operations, total assets,
net income and retained earnings, respectively.

On the acquisition of a subsidiary, all of the subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities that exist at the date of acquisition are
recorded at their fair value.

Any material difference between the cost of investment in a subsidiary and the equity in its net assets at the date of
acquisition is amortized over 10 years.

For the purpose of preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements, all significant intercompany transac-
tions, account balances and unrealized profits among the Companies have been eliminated. The amounts of certain sub-
sidiaries have been included in consolidation on the basis of their fiscal periods ended three months prior to March 31.

(2) Application of the Equity Method
Investments in companies that the Company has significant influence or ownership of more than 20% but less than or equal
to 50% are accounted for under the equity method. An affiliate accounted for under the equity method is listed below:

Equity ownership
percentage at

Name Country of incorporation March 31, 2006 Fiscal year-end

MOBIT CO., LTD. Japan 47.85% March 31

Under the equity method, investments are stated at cost plus/minus the Company’s equity in undistributed earnings (losses).
Any material difference between the cost of investment in an affiliated company and the equity in its net assets at the

date of acquisition is amortized over 10 years.
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and the remaining affiliates are carried at cost and are not adjusted for equity

in earnings (losses) of such subsidiaries and affiliates for each period because the effect of applying the equity method is
not material.

Promise Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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(3) Translation of Foreign Currencies
The accounts of the overseas consolidated subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen by the methods prescribed under
the statements issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council of Japan. Under this method, balance sheet
accounts are translated at current rates, shareholders’ equity is translated at the historical rate and revenues and expenses
are translated at the average rate for the respective periods.

Differences arising from the translations are recorded as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” in shareholders’ equity.

(4) Recognition of Revenues

Interest income
Interest income on consumer loans is recognized when collections are made during each financial period. At the end of
each financial period, the accrual basis is used to reflect the interest income earned, in accordance with Japanese tax prac-
tices, at the lower of interest rates provided by the Interest Rate Restriction Law of Japan or contracted interest rates and
any excess of contractual rates over statutory rates is not reflected for accounting purposes.

Other operating revenues
Loan guarantee revenues are recognized based on the remaining balance of the guarantee. Commissions on credit card
shopping service from customers are recognized based on the remaining balance of the loans. Commissions from franchisees
are recognized at the time loan was applied.

(5) Allowance for Credit Losses and Write-Offs
The allowance for credit losses of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are provided in an amount deemed neces-
sary to cover possible non-collectible accounts based on the percentage of their own actual experience of bad debt loss
written off against the balance of receivables and consumer loans.

Consumer loans are written off against the allowance for credit losses when both interest and principal of the loans have
been unpaid for a certain specified period of time or after follow-up requests for payment and/or uncollectibility of accounts
is clearly demonstrated by conditions such as the customer’s bankruptcy or death. 

The written-off balances of these consumer loans are managed by the special collection department. This department
makes an effort to collect the previously written-off balances as long as these balances are legally collectible. When the
previously written-off balances and the related interest are subsequently recovered and collected, the collected amounts
are included in “Other operating income” in the accompanying statements of income in the year of recovery.

(6) Valuation of Securities
All equity securities and debt securities are classified as “Other securities,” which represents securities other than trading
or held-to-maturity securities.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have adopted the Financial Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Financial
Instruments” issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council. Following the standard, the Company and its domes-
tic subsidiaries’ management determine the appropriate classification of securities, and records trading securities in current
assets and other securities as investments in securities.

Marketable “Other securities” are stated at market value. Adjustments to market value are recorded as an increase or
a decrease in shareholders’ equity, net of tax. Under the Commercial Code, unrealized gain (loss) on securities, net of tax
are not available for distribution as dividends and bonuses to directors and corporate auditors. Costs of their sales are
determined by the moving average method. “Other securities” which are not marketable are stated at cost, cost being
determined by the moving average method.

An impairment loss on deposits for golf club membership is also required to be recognized in accordance with the standard.

(7) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment (other than new buildings acquired on or after April 1, 1998, to which the straight-line method is
applied) are depreciated by the declining-balance method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The range of useful
lives is principally from 3 to 50 years for buildings and from 2 to 20 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment.

(8) Impairment of Fixed Assets
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have adopted “Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets.” This
accounting standard requires managements to consider each period whether there is any indication that assets (asset groups)
may be impaired. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries divide asset groups into categories of finance, rental and idle
assets based on independent cash flow units according to the types of business segment. If there is such indication, the
related assets (asset groups) must be tested for impairment which is first measured by reference to undiscounted cash flows.
If impairment exists, the entity must measure impairment by comparing the assets’ carrying value to the recoverable value.

(9) Foreign Currency Translation
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have adopted the Financial Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Foreign
Currency Transactions.”

Following the standard, receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen
at the relevant exchange rates prevailing at the respective balance sheet dates.

The resulting transaction gains or losses are included in the determination of “Other operating income” for the respective
periods.

(10) Leases
Where financing leases do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee during the terms of the leases, the leased
property is not capitalized and the related rental expenses are charged to income in the periods in which they are incurred.
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(11) Accrued Severance Indemnities
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have adopted the Financial Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Retirement
Benefits” issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council.

Following the standard, the amount of accrued severance indemnities for employees is provided based on the amount of
the projected benefit obligation less the fair value of the pension plan assets. The accrued severance indemnity cost for the
fiscal period is charged to income as incurred.

Unrecognized past service cost and net actuarial gain (loss) arising in the years are charged to income in the year in which
they arise.

The directors and corporate auditors of the Company and certain subsidiaries are covered by a retirement benefit plan
under which the retiring directors or corporate auditors are entitled to receive lump-sum retirement benefits. The amount
of such benefits is determined based on these companies’ pertinent rules. The accrued severance indemnities for directors
and corporate auditors in the accompanying balance sheets represent the estimated amount to be paid if all directors and
corporate auditors retired at the balance sheet dates.

In addition, allowance for retirement benefits for the above-mentioned executive officers is provided based on the
Company’s pertinent rules and is calculated as the estimated amount which would be payable if these officers were to retire
at the balance sheet date.

(12) Accruals for Debt Guarantees
Under the guarantee agreement between the Company and certain banks, the Company provides guarantees to the banks
on the bank loans provided bank customers. The guarantees are principally made to enhance the credits of these customers.
The Company has received guarantee fees from these banks. For each guarantee provided, the Company would have to
perform under the guarantee if the customer defaults on a payment. Accompanying with this agreement, the Company
recognizes accruals for debt guarantees to cover possible future losses on these guarantee balances at the balance sheet date.

(13) Accruals for Loss Guarantees
Under stock sale contracts of GC Co., Ltd., a former subsidiary, between the Company and GE Consumer Finance Co., Ltd.
(“GE”) concluded in July 2003, the Company provides guarantees to GE on certain receivables of GC Co., Ltd. During the
guarantee period, the Company would have to perform the guarantee if certain conditions on contracts are met and the
Company takes over claim for indemnities. The Company has made a provision for estimated loss in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets to cover non-collectible amounts of claim for indemnities at the balance sheet date.

(14) Allowance for Losses on Interest Repayments
On March 15, 2006, the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountant announced guidelines on auditing consumer
finance companies (Research Center Deliberation Report No. 24) that take into account the Supreme Court ruling concern-
ing the application of repayment rules stipulated under the Money Lending Business Control and Regulation Law. Based on
the increased materiality of interest repayment, starting with the current fiscal year, the Company has set up an allowance
for losses on interest repayment as a current liability.

Provision for the allowance is rationally estimated and booked based on the number of repayment claims by debtors for
interest paid in excess of the ceiling under the Interest Rate Restriction Law for which out of court settlement have not already
been reached and the historical amount of repayment while also taking into consideration the recent repayment conditions.

In accordance with this action, a provision for the allowance for losses on interest repayment totaling ¥23,970 million
($204,052 thousand) was included in operating expenses for the year ended March 31, 2006. As a result, compared with
using the same accounting procedures in the previous fiscal year, operating profit, income before income taxes and minority
interests declined the same amount.

(15) Stock Issue Expenses
Stock issue expenses are charged to income as incurred.

(16) Bond Issue Expenses
Bond issue expenses are charged to income as incurred.

(17) Appropriation of Retained Earnings
Under the Commercial Code and the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, proposals by the Board of Directors for the
appropriation of retained earnings (principally the payment of annual cash dividends) should be approved by a shareholders’
meeting which must be held within three months after the end of each financial year. The appropriation of retained earn-
ings reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for each fiscal year represents the appropriations
which were approved by the shareholders’ meeting and disposed of during that year but were related to the immediately
preceding fiscal year.

The payment of bonuses to directors and corporate auditors is made out of retained earnings instead of being charged
to income for the year and constitutes a part of the appropriations referred to above.

(18) Net Income and Dividends per Share
Basic net income per share is based upon the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during
each period.

Diluted net income per share is based upon the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding after
consideration of the dilutive effect of treasury stock for stock option plans during each year.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have adopted the Financial Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Earnings
per Share.” The presented figures of “Amount per share” were calculated in accordance with the standard.

Cash dividends per share represent interim dividends paid and annual dividends declared as applicable to the respective years.
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(19) Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments, generally with an original maturity date of three months or less, that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are so near maturity that they present an insignificant risk of change
in value due to interest rates.

(20) Derivatives
Following the Financial Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Financial Instruments,” derivative financial instruments are
recognized in the financial statements and measured at fair value, effective April 1, 2000. Gains and losses on designated
hedged instruments are deferred on the balance sheet to the period when gains and losses on the positions hedged have
been recognized to match gains and losses on the hedging instruments. Certain derivative instruments satisfying the condition
prescribed under the standard are not evaluated at fair value.

(21) Reclassifications
Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

3. UNITED STATES DOLLAR AMOUNTS

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in Japanese yen. The U.S. dollar amounts included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto represent the arithmetical results of translating yen into
dollars at the rate of ¥117.47 to U.S.$1, being the effective rate of exchange at March 31, 2006. The inclusion of such dollar
amounts is solely for convenience and is not intended to imply that yen amounts have been or could be readily converted,
realized or settled in dollars at the rate of ¥117.47 to U.S.$1 or at any other rate.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included ¥10,000 million ($85,125 thousand) and ¥44,376 million of short-term commercial
notes, as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Companies received securities, commercial paper and others as
collateral for short-term commercial notes. Market values of collateral as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Securities ¥ — ¥18,005 $ —
Commercial paper 10,000 24,997 85,125
Others — 1,380 —

¥10,000 ¥44,382 $85,125

5. CONSUMER LOANS RECEIVABLE

(1) Unsecured loans to individual customers, which were included in “Consumer loans receivable,” were ¥1,577,494 million
($13,428,913 thousand) and ¥1,595,397 million as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(2) The amounts of loans which were disclosed in accordance with the enactment of the Nonbank Bond Issuing Law in May
1999 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Credits of bankrupt borrowers ¥ 1,122 ¥ 2,848 $ 9,550
Delinquent loans 707 2,105 6,017
Delinquent loans three months or more past the due date 13,048 11,640 111,077
Restructured loans 69,391 70,067 590,710

¥84,268 ¥86,660 $717,354

Credits of bankrupt borrowers are loans under declaration of bankruptcy, reconstruction and similar proceedings
and whose accruing interest is not recorded as income because the principal or interest on such loans is unlikely to be
recovered in view of the considerable period of postponement of the principal or interest, or other circumstances.

Delinquent loans are credits whose accruing interest is not recorded as income for the same reason as the above and
do not include credits of bankrupt borrowers and the loans to which postponement of interest payment was made with
the object of reconstructing and supporting the borrowers.

Delinquent loans three months or more past the due date are loans which are delinquent for three months or more
from the due date of interest or principal under the terms of the related loan agreements and do not include credits of
bankrupt borrowers and delinquent loans, as described above.
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Restructured loans are loans to which a certain concession favorable to borrowers, such as postponement of interest
payment and other methods, was made with the object of encouraging repayment and do not include credits of bank-
rupt borrowers, delinquent loans and delinquent loans three months or more past the due date, as described above.

Restructured loans which are 30 days or less past due were ¥63,682 million ($542,112 thousand) and ¥64,000 million
as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(3) A revolving credit facility agreement is a contract whereby the Companies are obligated to loan repeatedly up to a
predetermined amount to a customer on request, if the customer has met the terms and conditions of the contract.

The total balance of revolving credit facilities unused, including credit facilities of customers without any loan balance,
except for those making no payment or receipt for two years or more, was ¥418,006 million ($3,558,409 thousand)
and ¥400,889 million as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The balance of revolving credit facilities unused
and secured was ¥191 million ($1,622 thousand) and ¥226 million as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Since
revolving credit facilities expire without making a loan, the total balance of unused credit facilities must not impact on
future cash flows of the Companies.

Revolving credit facilities contain provisions that allow the Companies to refuse to loan to the customers or reduce the
contract amount of the credit facilities if credit exposures or similar conditions change. After contracted, the Companies
periodically monitor customers’ creditworthiness and, if necessary, take measures to manage credit exposures, such as
revising the terms of the contract.

6. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

Transactions affecting the “Allowance for credit losses” account for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized
as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Balance at beginning of the year ¥ 130,589 ¥ 133,877 $1,111,677
Adjustments for newly consolidated subsidiaries  
and foreign currency translation (3,928) 8,419 (33,437)

Credit losses written off against the allowance (116,793) (109,247) (994,241)
Provision for uncollectible loans 125,806 97,540 1,070,964
Balance at end of the year ¥ 135,674 ¥ 130,589 $1,154,963

7. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investments in securities held by the Companies as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Investments in securities:
Equity securities ¥39,043 ¥11,213 $332,367
Other 718 801 6,113

¥39,761 ¥12,014 $338,480

Book value and acquisition cost information on marketable “Other securities” as of March 31, 2006 is summarized as follows:
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Book value Book value 
Acquisition per Acquisition per 

cost balance sheet Difference cost balance sheet Difference

Securities whose book values on 
the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheet exceed their acquisition costs:

Equity securities ¥19,178 ¥38,607 ¥19,429 $163,258 $328,655 $165,397
Other 115 252 137 982 2,147 1,165

19,293 38,859 19,566 164,240 330,802 166,562
Securities whose book values on 
the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheet do not exceed their acquisition costs:

Equity securities 24 22 (2) 205 185 (20)
Other 22 21 (1) 187 179 (8)

46 43 (3) 392 364 (28)
¥19,339 ¥38,902 ¥19,563 $164,632 $331,166 $166,534
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“Other securities” sold during the year ended March 31, 2006 were as follows:
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Proceeds Gain Loss Proceeds Gain Loss
from sales on sales on sales from sales on sales on sales

¥1,420 ¥584 ¥— $12,084 $4,971 $—

Book values of “Other securities” which were not marketable as of March 31, 2006 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Investments in securities:
Equity securities ¥414 $3,527
Other 445 3,787

Book value and acquisition cost information on marketable “Other securities” as of March 31, 2005 is summarized as follows:
Millions of Yen

Book value 
Acquisition per 

cost balance sheet Difference

Securities whose book values on 
the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheet exceed their acquisition costs:

Equity securities ¥5,110 ¥10,786 ¥5,676
Other 115 172 57

5,225 10,958 5,733
Securities whose book values on 
the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheet do not exceed their acquisition costs:

— — —
¥5,225 ¥10,958 ¥5,733

“Other securities” sold during the year ended March 31, 2005 were as follows:
Millions of Yen

Proceeds Gain Loss
from sales on sales on sales

¥1,802 ¥703 ¥—

Book values of “Other securities” which were not marketable as of March 31, 2005 are summarized as follows:
Millions of Yen

Investments in securities:
Equity securities ¥427
Other 629

As for “Other securities,” if their fair market value has declined more than 50% of their book value, such securities are
measured at their fair market value, and any decreases in the carrying amount are charged to income as the loss on valua-
tion of investments in securities. In case their fair market value has declined more than 30% but less than 50% of their
book value, such securities are measured at their fair market value, and any decreases in the carrying amount are charged
to income as the loss on valuation of investments in securities unless the fair market value is expected to be recoverable.

As for “Other securities” which are not marketable, if real price of the securities declined remarkably due to aggravation
of financial condition of issuing companies, such securities are impaired accordingly. 

The Companies recognized ¥50 million ($423 thousand) and ¥30 million in loss on valuation of investments in securities
for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

8. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company and certain subsidiaries enter into interest rate swap agreements to convert variable interest rates on the
principal amount of certain debts to fixed interest rates. In addition, the Company enters into interest rate cap agreements.
These agreements are used to reduce the exposure to market risk from fluctuation in interest rates. The Companies do not
hold or issue any financial instruments for trading purposes. The hedging instruments are measured for effectiveness by
correlation with respect to the difference between interest rate indicators upon the instruments and positions hedged. The
market risk associated with these instruments is managed under the Company’s internal manual approved by the Board of
Directors. The derivatives and hedging activities of the subsidiaries are subject to the Company’s approval.

The fair values of off-balance-sheet financial instruments were not disclosed since all outstanding derivative instruments
were designated as hedged as of March 31, 2006.
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The fair values of the off-balance-sheet financial instruments, excluding those for which hedge accounting was adopted in
accordance with the accounting standard as of March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Notional amount

Due after Unrealized
Total one year Fair value loss

Interest rate swap:
Changing floating rates into fixed rate ¥63,958 ¥48,379 ¥(1,192) ¥(1,192)

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Buildings ¥ 27,068 ¥ 27,341 $ 230,428
Structures 4,358 4,483 37,098
Fixtures and equipment 30,180 29,463 256,913
Other 89 89 761

61,695 61,376 525,200
Less: Accumulated depreciation (35,614) (32,861) (303,173)

26,081 28,515 222,027
Land 50,647 50,712 431,147
Construction in process — 301 —

¥ 76,728 ¥ 79,528 $ 653,174

10. FIXED LEASEHOLD DEPOSITS

Fixed leasehold deposits as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were mainly those paid to the lessors in connection with the leases of
facilities for office space. Lessors in Japan require large amounts of leasehold deposits equivalent to several months’ lease rental
payments. Such leasehold deposits do not bear interest and are generally returnable only when the lease is terminated.

11. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

(1) Information on the amount of short-term borrowings outstanding as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Short-term bank loans*:
Secured ¥ — ¥ — $ —
Unsecured 117,726 82,707 1,002,181

117,726 82,707 1,002,181
Commercial paper and other:

Secured — — —
Unsecured 20,000 — 170,256

20,000 — 170,256
¥137,726 ¥82,707 $1,172,437

* Maximum month-end balance outstanding during the period ¥117,726 ¥111,091 $1,002,181
Average month-end balance outstanding during the period 98,275 98,921 836,596
Weighted average interest rate for the period 0.755% 0.660%

Short-term bank loans were represented mainly by overdrafts with banks bearing interest at annual rates ranging from
0.570% to 5.500% and from 0.570% to 5.000% for each of the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. 

The principal ranges of annual interest rates applicable to commercial paper and other as of March 31, 2006 were from
0.170% to 0.230%. There was no outstanding balance of commercial paper as of March 31, 2005.
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(2) Long-term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following: 
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Loans, principally from banks and other financial institutions with 
interest rates indicated below*:
Secured ¥ 128,008 ¥ 152,906 $ 1,089,710
Entered into the forward contract of assigning consumer loans receivable 269,163 273,756 2,291,330
Unsecured 114,886 141,887 978,002

512,057 568,549 4,359,041
Bonds issued by Promise Co., Ltd.:

2.270% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2005 — 10,000 —
2.510% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2006 20,000 20,000 170,257
2.950% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2009 10,000 10,000 85,128
2.560% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2010 15,000 15,000 127,692
2.270% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2008 10,000 10,000 85,128
2.900% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2012 10,000 10,000 85,128
2.040% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2007 20,000 20,000 170,257
2.080% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2005 — 10,000 —
Floating rate (six-month Japanese yen—LIBOR+0.75%) 
uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2005 — 10,000 —

1.700% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2006 10,000 10,000 85,128
1.740% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2008 10,000 10,000 85,128
1.200% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2006 15,000 15,000 127,692
1.630% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2008 10,000 10,000 85,128
1.400% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2007 20,000 20,000 170,257
0.920% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2005 — 20,000 —
1.470% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2007 10,000 10,000 85,128
2.050% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2009 10,000 10,000 85,128
2.290% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2010 10,000 10,000 85,128
1.000% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2006 10,000 10,000 85,128
1.370% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2013 15,000 15,000 127,692
2.100% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2014 10,000 10,000 85,128
0.790% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2010 10,000 — 85,128
1.380% per annum uncollateralized yen bonds, due 2011 10,000 — 85,128

Less: Portion due within one year (197,107) (238,124) (1,677,932)
¥ 549,950 ¥ 595,425 $ 4,681,620

Weighted average interest rate for the period 1.453% 1.756%

* Annual interest rates on loans from banks and other financial institutions outstanding as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 ranged from 0.328% to 5.540% and
from 0.443% to 2.900%, respectively.

(3) The Companies’ assets pledged as collateral for short-term bank loans, commercial paper and other and long-term loans
with banks and other financial institutions as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Time deposits ¥ 4 ¥ 4 $ 30
Consumer loans receivable* 131,788 156,374 1,121,890
Property and equipment — 7,912 —
Other 6 42 54

¥131,798 ¥164,332 $1,121,974

* In addition to the above assets pledged, the Companies entered into the forward contract of assigning consumer loans receivable. The contract amounts were
¥277,911 million ($2,365,805 thousand) and ¥283,180 million as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt outstanding, excluding the preceding bonds, as of March 31, 2006
were as follows:

Thousands of
Year ending March 31, Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2007 ¥142,107 $1,209,728
2008 113,615 967,183
2009 64,756 551,254
2010 78,834 671,099
2011 and thereafter 112,745 959,777

¥512,057 $4,359,041

(4) The outstanding bank overdraft and loan commitments contracted but not provided for and similar agreements as of
March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Bank overdraft commitments:
Credit facilities ¥ 140,096 ¥ 3,890 $1,192,611
Used (110,742) (13) (942,724)
Unused ¥ 29,354 ¥ 3,877 $ 249,887

Bank loan commitments:
Credit facilities ¥ 178,515 ¥364,821 $1,519,666
Used (6,168) (88,045) (52,508)
Unused ¥ 172,347 ¥276,776 $1,467,158

12. SEVERANCE AND PENSION PLANS

Under the terms of the severance plans of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, employees of the Companies with
more than two years of service are generally entitled to lump-sum payments at the time of retirement.

The amount of the retirement benefit is, in general, based on the length of service, the accumulated points of individual
performance evaluations and the cause of retirement.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have non-contributory pension plans, which are defined benefit plans,
covering a portion of their severance plans.

In addition, the Company has contributory funded benefit pension plans, which are pursuant to the Japanese Welfare
Pension Insurance Law, and defined benefit plans. These plans cover a portion of the governmental welfare pension program,
under which both employers and employees contribute.

The overseas subsidiaries sponsor defined contribution plans.
The following is a reconciliation of benefit obligation to net liability recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets as of March 31, 2006 and 2005.
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Benefit obligation ¥(27,131) ¥(35,366) $(230,957)
Fair value of plan assets 25,083 21,033 213,523
Funded status (2,048) (14,333) (17,434)
Net liability recognized in balance sheet (2,048) (14,333) (17,434)
Accrued severance indemnities for employees ¥ (2,048) ¥(14,333) $ (17,434)

Components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Service cost ¥ 1,355 ¥2,345 $ 11,539
Interest cost 679 647 5,778
Expected return on plan assets (313) (305) (2,664)
Past service cost (2,476) 1,025 (21,081)
Net actuarial gain (2,939) (763) (25,017)
Net periodic benefit cost ¥(3,694) ¥2,949 $(31,445)



• 64

Service cost does not include employers’ contributions to the contributory funded benefit pension plan.
The benefit obligation was determined using a discount rate of 2.1% to 2.5% for the years ended March 31, 2006 and

2005, respectively. The expected long-term rate of return on the non-contributory pension plan assets and contributory
funded benefit pension plan assets ranged from 1.0% to 1.5% for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.

Net periodic service cost is attributed based on years of service.
Certain subsidiaries’ benefit obligations were calculated using a simplified method, which is permitted to be applied by

the small size of companies, in conformity with the Financial Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Retirement Benefits.”
For the year ended March 31, 2005, the Company adopted new personnel management system. The effect of this

adoption was to increase past service cost by ¥1,024 million. 
As a result of enactment of the “Defined Benefit Corporate Pension Law,” the Company was approved by the Ministry of

the Health, Labour and Welfare in Japan for exemption from the obligation for benefit related to future employee service
under substitutional portion on April 22, 2005. This resulted in decrease of past service cost by ¥2,022 million ($17,217
thousand). The Company was also approved of separation to the government of the remaining substitutional portion which
relates to past employee service on March 31, 2006 and recognized a gain of ¥7,766 million ($66,110 thousand) as “Gains
on return of substitutional portion of the Welfare Pension Fund Plan.” 

Past service cost for the year ended March 31, 2006, other than mentioned above, is consisted of increase of ¥568 mil-
lion ($4,832 thousand) due to a new personnel management system enforced on April 1, 2005, and decrease of ¥1,021
million ($8,697 thousand) from a shift toward defined benefit corporate pension plan introduced on March 31, 2006.

13. LEASE COMMITMENTS

(1) Rental, depreciation, interest expense and impairment loss relating to financing leases which do not transfer ownership
of the leased properties to the lessee during the terms of the leases as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Rental expense ¥1,200 ¥1,531 $10,212
Depreciation expense 1,091 1,407 9,290
Interest expense 46 104 392
Impairment loss 437 — 3,723

Depreciation expense is computed by the straight-line method over the terms of the related leases. The interest expense is
computed by the interest method.

The aggregate future lease payments as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Due within one year ¥368 ¥1,140 $3,135
Due after one year 305 647 2,599

¥673 ¥1,787 $5,734

A summary of the leased properties under the above leases as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ¥ 4,729 ¥ 6,105 $ 40,258
Other 56 132 479

4,785 6,237 40,737
Less: Accumulated depreciation (4,166) (4,525) (35,467)
Less: Accumulated impairment loss (437) — (3,723)

¥ 182 ¥ 1,712 $ 1,547

(2) Aggregate future lease payments under ordinary operating leases as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Due within one year ¥194 ¥105 $1,649
Due after one year 183 14 1,560

¥377 ¥119 $3,209  
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14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(1) The Company’s subsidiary in Taiwan used to operate brokerage of automobile loans. The subsidiary guarantees to pur-
chase loans under certain conditions which occur on them. The amounts were ¥10 million ($85 thousand) and ¥68 mil-
lion as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(2) As described in Note 2 (12), the Company has agreements with financial institutions on debt guarantees. The contracted
amount were ¥95,485 million ($812,842 thousand) and ¥23,936 million as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

(3) PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD. operates credits appraisal and analysis for loans and purchase of claimable assets. With
regard to this business, there is a possibility that the subsidiary is obliged to pay ¥44,134 million ($375,709 thousand)
and ¥33,153 million as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively under certain condition.

(4) As described in Note 2 (13), the Company provides guarantees on certain receivables owned by GC Co., Ltd. The esti-
mated loss is provided on the balance sheets as accruals for loss guarantees. The aggregated amount of guarantees
relating the above transaction were ¥2,104 million ($17,914 thousand) and ¥15,411 million as of March 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

15. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The portion which is to be designated as common stock is determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. Proceeds in
excess of the amounts designated as common stock are credited to capital surplus.

The Commercial Code provided that an amount equal to at least 10% of cash dividends and other appropriations of
retained earnings paid out with respect to each financial period is required to set aside until the total amount of capital
surplus and legal reserve equals 25% of the amount of common stock. This reserve may be transferred to common stock by
a resolution of the Board of Directors or used to reduce a deficit with the approval of the shareholders’ meeting but is not
available for dividend payments.

On June 21, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved that the Company would enter into general agreement
with Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation (“SMBC”) in terms of business
alliance in consumer finance business and capital alliance.

In connection with capital alliance, the Company issued 8,900,000 shares of common stocks at price ¥7,120 per share
for net proceeding of ¥63,368 million to SMBC in July, 2004. The net proceeding was credited to common stock and
capital surplus equally.

In addition to the above issuance, the Company sold 4,330,000 shares of treasury stocks to SMBC at price of ¥7,120 per
share, and the total net proceeding from sales of treasury stocks was ¥30,830 million.

16. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

As described in Note 2 (5), the collected amounts are included in “Other operating income” in the accompanying statements
of income in the year of recovery when the previously written-off balances of consumer loans and the related interest are
subsequently recovered and collected.

Collected amounts for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Collected amounts ¥5,234 ¥4,901 $44,557

17. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expense, which was included in “Financial expenses” in the accompanying consolidated statements of income, for
the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Interest expense ¥14,629 ¥16,628 $124,535
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18. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended March
31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Advertising expenses ¥ 20,334 ¥ 16,441 $ 173,098
Employees’ salaries and bonuses 27,034 25,944 230,139
Rent expenses 11,341 9,749 96,544
Provision for losses on interest repayments 23,970 — 204,052
Interest repayments 14,440 5,964 122,928
Other 74,801 66,364 636,767

¥171,920 ¥124,462 $1,463,528

19. IMPAIRMENT LOSS

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment loss of fixed assets of ¥2,622 million ($22,319 thou-
sand) and ¥1,268 million for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

For the year ended March 31, 2006, idle assets for which market value has fallen markedly below book value have been
adjusted to amounts their recovery value. As a result, impairment loss of ¥155 million ($1,315 thousand ) was recognized.
Of that amount, ¥62 million ($527 thousand) was for land and ¥93 million ($788 thousand) for telephone rights. 

At-Loan Co., Ltd., recognized impairment loss of ¥1,970 million ($16,774 thousand ) for writing off the book value of
operating assets no longer needed when it converted to a new computer system. Of this amount, buildings accounted for
¥128 million ($1,093 thousand), fixtures and equipment for ¥14 million ($116 thousand), and software for ¥1,828 million
($15,565 thousand). Additionally for leased property, impairment loss of ¥437 million ($3,723 thousand) equivalent to the
contract cancellation expense was recognized.

PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD. provides credit appraisal and analysis for loans and purchase of claimable assets services to
a local bank. Due to deterioration in the company’s business, the book value of its assets group have been written down to
estimated recovery values. The resultant ¥59 million ($506 thousand) impairment loss has been recognized. Of that amount,
¥4 million ($34 thousand) was for buildings, ¥24 million ($200 thousand) for fixtures and equipment and ¥32 million ($272
thousand) for software. 

The recovery value is stated as net sales value calculated using the assessment value, etc., of a real estate appraiser and
telephone rights were based on market value.

For the year ended March 31, 2005, impairment loss of ¥1,268 million was recognized due to a consistent decline in
land price and operating rate for rentals and due to a notable drop in market value below book value for idle assets. Of this
amount, ¥1,231 million was for land, ¥10 million for leasehold, and ¥27 million for buildings. 

20. INCOME TAXES

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries are subject to a number of different taxes based on income, which
in the aggregate indicate a normal effective statutory income tax rate of approximately 40.7% for each of the years ended
March 31, 2006 and 2005. 

Overseas consolidated subsidiaries are subject to income taxes of the countries in which they operate.
Reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2006 was as follows:

Statutory tax rate 40.7%
Effect of subsidiaries which do not adopt tax effect accounting 5.7
Other 1.2

Effective tax rate 47.6%

Reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2005 was not disclosed
since there was no material difference between them.
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The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Deferred tax assets due to:
Credit losses for receivables and consumer loans ¥20,049 ¥17,067 $170,675
Allowance for credit losses 1,855 5,149 15,792
Accrued enterprise taxes 2,003 1,970 17,050
Accrued severance indemnities for employees 826 5,617 7,032
Accrued income 4,136 3,792 35,208
Accruals for debt guarantees 3,018 — 25,691
Allowance for losses on interest repayments 9,760 — 83,087
Gains on return of substitutional portion of the Welfare Pension Fund Plan 3,160 — 26,900
Other 3,608 3,202 30,715

48,415 36,797 412,150
Deferred tax liabilities due to:

Net unrealized gains on securities (7,964) (2,355) (67,800)
Other — (123) —

(7,964) (2,478) (67,800)
Net deferred tax assets ¥40,451 ¥34,319 $344,350

Net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were included in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Current assets:
Deferred tax assets ¥45,596 ¥29,661 $388,150

Investments and advances:
Deferred tax assets 985 4,658 8,383

¥46,581 ¥34,319 $396,533 

Long-term liabilities: 
Deferred tax assets ¥ 6,130 ¥ — $ 52,183

21. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Companies’ operations by business segment for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 are not disclosed since the
Companies’ business other than consumer financial business is immaterial.

The Companies’ operations by geographic segment for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 are not disclosed since
the Companies’ business other than in Japan is immaterial.

Information about operating income overseas for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 is not disclosed since the
Companies’ operating income overseas is immaterial.

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation (“SMBC”) had become a related party of the Company due to acquisition of 16.05% of
voting rights of the Company on July 14, 2004 and induction of an executive officer of SMBC into the Company on September
30, 2004. SMBC held 21.50% of the voting rights as of March 31, 2006. Transactions with SMBC were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Loan related transactions:
Long-term debt ¥50,120 ¥20,572 $462,662
Current portion of long-term debt 452 832 3,848
Short-term borrowings 5,432 — 46,242
Interest expense 140 9 1,192

*1. The interest rates on SMBC’s loans to the Company are market rates. Borrowings from SMBC are carried out based on the approval of the board of directors
and internal rules in the same way as for borrowings from other banks. 

*2. Only important transactions were disclosed.
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23. AMOUNT PER SHARE

The amounts of basic and diluted net income per share for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Net income per share—Basic ¥321.38 ¥576.05 $2.74 
—Diluted — 575.88 —

The figure of diluted net income per share is not disclosed since there was no potential share of common stock that had
dilutive effect for the year ended March 31, 2006.

The amounts and numbers used for the basic net income per share computation were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Net income ¥42,047 ¥75,379 $357,935
Less: The amount not applicable to shareholders of common stock

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors (80) (133) (678)
Net income applicable to shareholders of common stock ¥41,967 ¥75,245 $357,256

Shares

2006 2005

Weighted average number of shares of common stock 130,581,375 130,622,213

The following figures are potential shares of common stock that were excluded from the net income per share computa-
tion because they had no dilutive effect.

Shares

2006 2005

Treasury stock held for stock option 214,800 222,000

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

At the general shareholders’ meeting of the Company held on June 20, 2006, the payment of cash dividends, ¥52.5 ($0.45)
per share, was approved, which amounted to ¥6,658 million ($56,678 thousand).
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 

Promise Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Promise Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries as

of March 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for

the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese Yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on

our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards, generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-

mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-

dated financial position of Promise Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, and the con-

solidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles

and practices generally accepted in Japan (see Note 1).

As described in Note 2 (14), effective from the year ended March 31, 2006, Promise Co., Ltd. and its consolidated

subsidiaries have set up allowance for losses on interest repayments as a current liability.

As described in Note 2, effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, Promise Co., Ltd. and its domestic consolidated

subsidiaries have adopted new Japanese standards for impairment of fixed assets.

The amounts express in U.S. dollars, which are provided solely for the convenience of the reader, have been translated on

the basis set forth in Note 3 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

ChuoAoyama PricewaterhouseCoopers

Osaka, Japan

June 20, 2006



Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets

Promise Co., Ltd. 
March 31, 2006 and 2005

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 56,194 ¥ 102,531 $ 478,366
Time deposits 50 50 426
Consumer loans receivable:

Principal 1,295,316 1,326,794 11,026,783
Accrued interest income 11,739 12,138 99,930

Less: Allowance for credit losses (101,500) (97,400) (864,051)
1,205,555 1,241,532 10,262,662

Prepaid expenses 1,356 1,618 11,543
Deferred tax assets 41,020 25,190 349,191
Other current assets 98,473 109,827 838,294

Total current assets 1,402,648 1,480,748 11,940,482

Investments and advances:
Investments in securities 39,439 11,650 335,733
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries and affiliates 69,125 69,201 588,449
Long-term prepaid expenses 1,008 962 8,580
Deferred tax assets — 3,821 —
Other investments and advances 10,325 8,670 87,890

Total investments and advances 119,897 94,304 1,020,652

Property and equipment, net 66,613 68,714 567,066
Fixed leasehold deposits 9,191 9,332 78,240

Total assets ¥1,598,349 ¥1,653,098 $13,606,440

Note: U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥117.47 to U.S.$1, the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2006.
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Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings ¥ 25,432 ¥ — $ 216,498
Current portion of long-term debt 193,465 235,711 1,646,933
Accounts payable 5,089 9,343 43,319
Accrued income taxes 24,576 22,586 209,210
Accruals for debt guarantees 7,417 193 63,140
Accrued expenses 5,555 6,111 47,285
Allowance for business losses of subsidiary 5,051 — 42,998
Allowance for losses on interest repayments 21,200 — 180,472
Other current liabilities 3,621 3,363 30,826

Total current liabilities 291,406 277,307 2,480,681

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt 544,664 586,329 4,636,622
Non-current accounts payable — 113 —
Accrued severance indemnities 1,604 13,962 13,659
Accruals for loss guarantees 2,000 860 17,026
Deferred tax liabilities 3,951 — 33,635
Other long-term liabilities 61 41 516

Total long-term liabilities 552,280 601,305 4,701,458

Commitments 

Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock:

Authorized—300,000,000 shares
Issued—134,866,665 shares at March 31, 2006 80,738 — 687,305
Issued—134,866,665 shares at March 31, 2005 — 80,738 —

Capital surplus:
Additional paid-in capital 112,640 112,640 958,882
Net gain on sales of treasury stock 14,697 14,741 125,115

Retained earnings:
Legal reserve 12,263 12,263 104,396
Voluntary reserve 538,700 485,700 4,585,852
Unappropriated retained earnings 41,434 67,759 352,721

Net unrealized gain on securities 11,610 3,432 98,826
Less: Treasury stock—8,047,638 shares at March 31, 2006 (57,419) — (488,796)
Less: Treasury stock—352,305 shares at March 31, 2005 — (2,787) —

Total shareholders’ equity 754,663 774,486 6,424,301
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥1,598,349 ¥1,653,098 $13,606,440



Non-Consolidated Statements of Income

Promise Co., Ltd. 
For the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 2005 2006

Operating income:
Interest on consumer loans ¥296,730 ¥305,471 $2,526,008
Other operating income 11,230 7,571 95,598

Total operating income 307,960 313,042 2,621,606

Operating expenses:
Financial expenses 14,558 17,432 123,930
General and administrative expenses 132,104 101,791 1,124,581
Provision for uncollectible loans 95,088 77,689 809,462

Total operating expenses 241,750 196,912 2,057,973
Operating profit 66,210 116,130 563,633

Other income (expenses):
Interest and dividend income on investments 383 1,317 3,258
Stock issue expenses — (231) —
Bond issue expenses — (9) —
Insurance money received and insurance divided 540 320 4,599
Equity in earnings of Tokumei Kumiai 242 447 2,061
Net gain on sales of investments in securities 584 703 4,971
Loss on valuation of investments in securities (50) (30)           (423)
Net loss on sales or disposal of property and equipment (467) (1,330) (3,979)
Impairment loss (111) (1,015) (945)
Loss on valuation of investments in subsidiaries (304) (1,560) (2,585)
Provision for loss guarantees (1,140) — (9,703)
Expense for relocation of offices (223) (228) (1,897)
Provision for business losses of subsidiary (5,051) — (42,998)
Gains on return of substitutional portion of 
the Welfare Pension Fund Plan 7,766 — 66,110

Impairment loss on deposits for golf club membership — (38) —
Other, net 510 419 4,340

Total other income (expenses), net 2,679 (1,235) 22,809
Income before income taxes 68,889 114,895 586,442

Income taxes:
Current 41,562 37,596 353,814
Deferred (13,667) 9,125 (116,349)

27,895 46,721 237,465
Net income ¥ 40,994 ¥ 68,174 $ 348,977

Yen U.S. Dollars

Amount per share:
Net income:

Basic ¥313.42 ¥521.02 $2.67
Diluted — 520.87 —

Cash dividends 105.00 105.00 0.89
Weighted average number of shares (Thousands):

Basic 130,581 130,622
Diluted — 130,660

Note: U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥117.47 to U.S.$1, the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2006.
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Promise Co., Ltd. 
For the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Non-Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Millions of Yen

Capital surplus Retained earnings

Net gain Net
Number of Additional on sales Unappropriated unrealized
shares of Common paid-in of treasury Legal Voluntary retained gain on Treasury

common stock stock capital stock reserve reserve earnings securities stock

Balance at March 31, 2004 125,966,665 ¥49,054 ¥ 80,956 ¥ 255 ¥12,263 ¥448,700 ¥ 49,428 ¥ 4,151 ¥(20,796)
Net income — — — — — — 68,174 — —
Cash dividends paid — — — — — — (12,770) — —
Bonuses to directors and 
corporate auditors — — — — — — (73) — —

Gain on sales of treasury stock — — — 14,486 — — — — —
Transfer to voluntary reserve — — — — — 37,000 (37,000) — —
Allocation of new shares to 
a third party 8,900,000 31,684 31,684 — — — — — —

Decrease due to valuation 
of securities, net of tax — — — — — — — (719) —

Decrease in treasury stock — — — — — — — — 18,009
Balance at March 31, 2005 134,866,665 ¥80,738 ¥112,640 ¥14,741 ¥12,263 ¥485,700 ¥ 67,759 ¥ 3,432 ¥ (2,787)

Net income — — — — — — 40,994 — —
Cash dividends paid — — — — — — (14,202) — —
Bonuses to directors and 
corporate auditors — — — — — — (117) — —

Loss on sales of treasury stock  — — — (44) — — — — —
Transfer to voluntary reserve — — — — — 53,000 (53,000) — —
Increase due to valuation 
of securities, net of tax — — — — — — — 8,178 —

Increase in treasury stock — — — — — — — — (54,632)
Balance at March 31, 2006 134,866,665 ¥80,738 ¥112,640 ¥14,697 ¥12,263 ¥538,700 ¥ 41,434 ¥11,610 ¥(57,419)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Capital surplus Retained earnings

Net gain Net
Additional on sales Unappropriated unrealized

Common paid-in of treasury Legal Voluntary retained gain on  Treasury
stock capital stock reserve reserve earnings securities stock

Balance at March 31, 2005 $687,305 $958,882 $125,489 $104,396 $4,134,673 $ 576,818 $29,216 $ (23,723)
Net income — — — — — 348,977 — —
Cash dividends paid — — — — — (120,898) — —
Bonuses to directors and 
corporate auditors — — — — — (997) — —

Loss on sales of treasury stock — — (374) — — — — —
Transfer to voluntary reserve — — — — 451,179 (451,179) — —
Increase due to valuation 
of securities, net of tax — — — — — — 69,610 —

Increase in treasury stock — — — — — — — (465,073)
Balance at March 31, 2006 $687,305 $958,882 $125,115 $104,396 $4,585,852 $ 352,721     $98,826 $(488,796)

Note: U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥117.47 to U.S.$1, the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2006.
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Consolidated Subsidiaries and Equity-Method Affiliated Company (As of March 31, 2006)

QUOQLOAN INC.

http://quoqloan.jp
Address: 1-2-4, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0004
Paid-in Capital: ¥5,434 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 85%

Principal Business: Consumer finance

Sun Life Co., Ltd.

http://www.sunlife-net.co.jp
Address: 2-7-6, Kawaramachi, Takamatsu, 

Kagawa 760-0052
Paid-in Capital: ¥185 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 100%

Principal Business: Consumer finance

At-Loan Co., Ltd.

http://at-loan.jp
Address: 1-9-2, Higashi-Shimbashi, Minato-ku, 

Tokyo 105-0021
Paid-in Capital: ¥10,912 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 50%

Principal Business: Consumer finance

PAL Servicer Co., Ltd.

http://www.palsvc.co.jp
Address: 1-2-4, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0004
Paid-in Capital: ¥500 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 100%

Principal Business: Loan management and collection

PAL Life Co., Ltd.

http://www.kk-pal.co.jp
Address: 1-2-4, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0004
Paid-in Capital: ¥3,000 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 100%

Principal Business: Management of leased real estate

Net Future Co., Ltd.*

http://www.netfuture.co.jp
Address: 1-2-4, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0004
Paid-in Capital: ¥300 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 100%

Principal Business: Telemarketing, maintenance and management 
of ATMs

STC Co., Ltd.*

http://www.stc-ltd.co.jp
Address: 1-2-4, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0004
Paid-in Capital: ¥90 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 100%

Principal Business: Computer system design, operation, and 
management

* Net Future Co., Ltd., and STC Co., Ltd., merged on April 1, 2006, with Net Future as
the continuing company.

Domestic Subsidiaries

Overseas Subsidiaries

Equity-Method Affiliated Company

China

PROMISE (HONG KONG) CO., LTD.

http://www.promise.com.hk
Address: 72 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Paid-in Capital: HK$45 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 100%

Principal Business: Consumer finance

Taiwan

Liang Jing Co., Ltd.

Address: 146, Sung Jiang Rd., Taipei
Paid-in Capital: NT$290 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 100%

Principal Business: Loan management and collection

PROMISE (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.

Address: 146, Sung Jiang Rd., Taipei
Paid-in Capital: NT$250 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 70%

Principal Business: Credit appraisal and analysis for loans, and
purchase of claimable assets

MOBIT CO., LTD.

http://www.mobit.ne.jp
Address: 2-4-1, Nishi-Shinjuku, Shinjuku-ku, 

Tokyo 163-0810
Paid-in Capital: ¥20,000 million
Ownership of 
Voting Rights: 50%

Principal Business: Consumer finance
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Corporate Information (As of March 31, 2006)

Corporate Data

Expanding Disclosure

Head Office: 1-2-4, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0004, Japan

Tel: +81-3-3287-1515

URL: http://cyber.promise.co.jp/

Date of Establishment: March 20, 1962

Fiscal Year: April 1 to March 31

Paid-in Capital: ¥80,738 million

Number of Employees: 3,582

Auditor: ChuoAoyama PricewaterhouseCoopers

Listing: First Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange

IR Events for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006

April 25, 2005 Announcement of financial results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005

April 26, 2005 Information meeting for investors in Japan covering the financial results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005

Conference call for foreign investors covering the financial results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005

May 12 through May 27, 2005 Investor relations tour to meet foreign investors

June 21, 2005 Regular General Meeting of Shareholders

July 26, 2005 Announcement of financial and operating results for the first quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006

August 2005 Issuance of Promise’s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005

October 27, 2005 Announcement of interim results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006

October 28, 2005 Information meeting for investors in Japan covering the financial results for the interim period

Conference call for foreign investors covering the financial results for the interim period

November 23
through December 8, 2005 Investor relations tour to meet foreign investors

January 25, 2006 Announcement of financial and operating results for the third quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006

February 6
through February 8, 2006 Investor relations tour to meet foreign investors

Promise Co., Ltd., makes efforts to encourage greater under-
standing of its management strategies and business develop-
ment. The Company does so through the publication of a variety
of IR tools, including news releases, financial reports, and other
materials, as well as through information disclosed on its web
site (http://www.promise.co.jp/english/ir/). Top management
takes the initiative in communicating its message directly by
participating in information meetings and maintaining regular
contact with stock analysts and investors. Top management is
also hearing the opinions and requests of shareholders and
investors regarding the Company’s business strategies and
gives this feedback due consideration.

From the perspective of increasing the transparency of its
management practices and enhancing information disclosure to
shareholders, Promise is committed to robust IR programs
domestically and internationally to expand its disclosure.

http://www.promise.co.jp/english/ir/
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